
 6/25/2018: REVISED STAFF REPORT 8.A. AND WELL LEVELS 
6/27/2018: REVISED EXPENDITURE REPORT 4.A.

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Thursday, June 28, 2018 - 2:00 PM
1000 Main Street Cambria, CA 93428

AGENDA
Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the
agenda are on file in the Office of the District Clerk, available for public inspection during District business
hours. The agenda and agenda packets are also available on the CCSD website at www.cambriacsd.org.
The District Office hours are Monday - Thursday, and every other Friday from 9:00 a.m. through 4:00 p.m.
Please call 805-927-6223 if you need any assistance. If requested, the agenda and supporting documents
shall be made available in alternative formats to persons with a disability. The District Clerk will answer any
questions regarding the agenda.

1. OPENING

A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Establishment of Quorum

D. Agenda Review: Additions/Deletions

2. PUBLIC SAFETY (Estimated time 5 Minutes per item)

A. Sheriff's Department Report

B. CCSD Fire Chief's Report

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Estimated time 30 minutes. At President's discretion additional
comments may be heard at the end of the meeting.)

Members of the public may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction of the Board but
not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot discuss or act on items not on the
agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips (available at the entry) should be submitted to the
District Clerk.

4. CONSENT AGENDA (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

All matters on the consent calendar are to be approved by one motion. If Directors wish to discuss a consent
item other than simple clarifying questions, a request for removal may be made. Such items are pulled for
separate discussion and action after the consent calendar as a whole is acted upon.

A. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE MAY 2018 EXPENDITURE REPORT

1

http://


B. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE MAY 15, 2018 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES AND
MAY 24, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

C. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 15-2018 ESTABLISHING
FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

D. CONSIDERATION OF ACTION ON APPROVED CAL OES HAZARD MITIGATION
GRANT PROGRAM NOTICES OF INTEREST

E. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 18-2018 APPROVING AN
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH WILLIAM S. HOLLINGSWORTH

F. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 16-2018 REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF
THE CCSD 2018 BIENNIAL ELECTION WITH THE NOVEMBER 6, 2018
CONSOLIDATED GENERAL ELECTION

G. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 19-2018 UPDATING THE
ASSIGNMENT OF BANKING POWERS FOR CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT

H. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF PG&E PROPOSAL TO INITIATE THE
PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT OF A DESIGN-BUILD ENERGY PROJECT AT THE
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY THROUGH THE SUSTAINABLE SOLUTIONS
TURNKEY (SST) PROGRAM

I. CONSIDERATION TO EXTEND THE AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
WITH BALANCE PUBLIC RELATIONS FOR AN ADDITIONAL SIX MONTHS

5. HEARINGS AND APPEALS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item)

A. PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 13-
2018 CONFIRMING 2017 FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION ITEMIZED REPORT OF
THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

B. PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER RESOLUTION 12-2018
APPROVING A FIRE SUPPRESSION BENEFIT ASSESSMENT CONSUMER PRICE
INDEX (CPI) ADJUSTMENT AT THE RATE OF 4.0% FOR FY 2018/2019 AND
CONFIRMING THE ITEMIZED REPORT TO COLLECT THE ASSESSMENT ON THE
COUNTY TAX ROLLS

C. PUBLIC HERAING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 14-2018
CONFIRMING THE ITEMIZED REPORT TO COLLECT DELINQUENT SOLID WASTE
COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL CHARGES ON THE COUNTY TAX ROLLS

6. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item)

A. RECEIVE AND FILE THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR
2016/17

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AMENDED AGREEMENT FOR
CONSULTANT SERVICES WITH TEKTEGRITY AND AUTHORIZE AN ADDITIONAL
$1500 FOR LABOR COSTS

C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING REVIEW OF CCSD POLICIES
AND POSSIBLE CREATION OF AD HOC COMMITTEE

7. BOARD MEMBER, COMMITTEE & LIAISON REPORTS

A. Board Member, Committee and Liaison Reports

8. MANAGER REPORTS

A. General Manager's Report

B. Finance Manager's Report

9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

Requests from Board members to receive feedback, direct staff to prepare information, and/or request a formal

2



agenda report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal action can be taken except to
direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda by majority vote.

10. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION, pursuant to Government
Code Section 54957
Titles: District Counsel

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(2) One potential case.

3



Cambria CSD Fire Department  
June 28, 2018 CCSD Board Meeting 

May 2018 

Prevention and Education 

• 1 Residential rough/hydro inspections were completed 

• 4 Fire final inspections 

• 2 Residential site visits for building questions 

• 6 Fire plan reviews 

o 474 Norfolk

o 3113 Rogers

o 4005 Burton 

o 5148 Pembrook

o 2130 Wilton

o 1887 Londonderry

• 5 Engine company commercial fire and life safety inspections were conducted

• 2 Public education events

• 5 Residential smoke/carbon monoxide detectors were installed and or the batteries changed

• 2 Fire Engine and Station tours

Hydrants Maintenance & Testing 

Date Water Used Hydrants Completed Hours 

2017 5,418 98 98 

January - April 0 74 50 

May 0 22 16 

Total 5,418 194 164 

Meetings and Affiliations 

• SLO County Chiefs mtg May 2nd, 0900 Cambria 

• Forest Comm/FHFRP mtg May 14th, 1000 Cambria 

• Firesafe Council mtg May 16th, 0900 Templeton 

• Fire Inspector 2D training May 17th-May 20th Rancho Cucamonga 

• IAFF Townhall mtg May 22nd, 1830 Cambria 

• CISM training May 23rd, 0900 San Luis Obispo 

• Firesafe Focus Group mtg May 23rd, 1500 Cambria 

• CCSD Board mtg May 24th, 1400 Cambria 

  Operations and News 

• Training hours: 56 hours, Training for the month of May was primarily focused on the following topics:

USAR high angle rescue, ImageTrend data collection, Wildland

• Countywide WUI drill

SAFER Grant Update 

• New SAFER Grant application was turned in (pending award cycle)

3-Year SAFER Grant Projected Costs (fully burdened, not reflective of entry level)

Time Frame Federal Share CCSD Share Total 

Year 1 (25% match) $283,518.75 $94,506.25 $378,025.00 

Year 2 (50% match) $189,012.50 $189,012.50 $378,025.00 

Year 3 (75% match) $94,506.25 $283,518.75 $378,025.00 

Fire Statistics are attached for your review 

4



CMB Fire Monthly Stats:  Incidents

Categories Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18  Totals

Fire 0 1 0 0 3 4

Hazardous Mat. 0 0 0 0 0 0

Medical 48 38 41 49 43 219

(local patients/percentage) 40/83.3% 29/76.3% 36/87.8% 44/90% 33/76.7% 182 / 83.1%

(non-local patients/percentage 8/16.7% 9/23.7% 5/12.2% 5/10% 10/23.3% 37 / 16.9%

Ocean Rescue 0 0 0 3 0 3

Cliff Rescue 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vehicle TC 3 1 1 3 0 8

Hazardous Situations 5 7 9 4 5 30

Public Service Assist 17 21 18 17 6 79

False Alarms 15 14 16 9 5 59

Agency Assist 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mutual Aid 0 1 0 0 2 3

(Structure Fire) 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Vegetation Fire - In County) 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Ocean Rescue - In County) 0 0 0 0 0

(Cliff Rescue - In County) 1 0 0 2 3

(Vegetation Fire - Out of County) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Auto Aid 0 0 0 0 1 1

(Structure Fire) 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Vegetation Fire) 0 0 0 0 1 1

(Vehicle Accident) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire Investigations 0 1 0 0 3 4

Monthly Response Totals 85 83 84 79 68 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 399

5



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.6



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.7



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.8



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.9



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.10



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.11



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.12



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.13



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.14



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.15



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.16



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.17



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.18



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.19



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.20



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.21



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.22



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.23



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.24



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.25



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.26



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.27



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.28



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.29



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.30



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.31



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.32



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.33



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.34



6/27/2018: Revised Expenditure Report 4.A.35



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, May 15, 2018 1:00 PM 
 

1. OPENING 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

President Rice called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

A quorum was established. 
 

Directors present: President Rice, Vice President Bahringer, Director Farmer, 
Director Wharton, and Director Pierson. 

 
Staff present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, District Counsel Timothy Carmel, 
Special Counsel Shelline Bennett, and Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk 
Monique Madrid. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
None. 

 
3. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
President Rice adjourned the meeting to closed session at 1:05 p.m. 

 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(2) Two potential cases. 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
Initiation of Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): 
One Potential Case 

 
C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry 

D. Gruber and Shelline Bennett, LCW; Employee Group: International 

Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry 

D. Gruber and Shelline Bennett, LCW; Employee Organization: Services 

Employee International Union 
 

E. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General 
Manager, Jerry D. Gruber and Shelline Bennett, LCW; Unrepresented group, 
Management and Confidential Exempt Employees 

36



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, May 24, 2018 2:00 PM 
 

1. OPENING 
 
A. Call to Order 

 
President Rice called the meeting to order at 2:04 p.m. 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

A quorum was established. 
 

Directors present: President Rice, Vice President Bahringer, Director Farmer, Director 
Wharton and Director Pierson. 

 
Staff present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, District Counsel Timothy Carmel, 
Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk Monique Madrid, District Engineer Bob 
Gresens and Finance Manager Rudy Hernandez. 

 

D. Agenda Review: Additions/Deletions/Changes 
 

President Rice asked for any additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
General Manager Gruber asked to switch the Rate Study and the Budget item. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the various suggestions of the budget presentation. 

 
 

2. PUBLIC SAFETY (Estimated time 5 Minutes per item) 
 

A. Sheriff's Department Report 
 

Commander Voge provided a summary review of the report and recent activities in 
Cambria. 

 
 

B. CCSD Fire Chief's Report 
 

Chief Hollingsworth provided a summary review of the report and recent activities in 
Cambria. 
 

3. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Cambria Community Services District Fire Chief William Hollingsworth will 
introduce the new Reserve Firefighters 

 
Chief Hollingsworth introduced the new Reserve Firefighters Andrew Schechter, Jake 
Babinski and Jeffrey Luna. 

37



4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Estimated time 30 minutes. At President's discretion 

additional comments may be heard at the end of the meeting.) 
 

Public Comment:  
Nancy Anderson 
Ted Key 
Tina Dickason 
Sarah Russo 
Jay Stewart Criss for Carol 
Donn Howell 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA (Estimated time: 15 Minutes) 
 

A. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE APRIL 2018 EXPENDITURE REPORT 
 

B. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE APRIL 19, 2018 REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

 

C. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 11-2018 APPROVING AN 

UPDATE TO THE SANITARY SEWER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

President Rice asked for any items to be pulled. No items were pulled. 
 

Public Comment:  
Tina Dickason 

 
President Rice asked District Counsel to respond regarding expenditure report question. 
District Counsel stated that LCW handles a number of personnel matters, training and 
negotiations. 
 
Vice President Bahringer moved to approve the consent agenda. 

 
 

Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote:  

Vice President Bahringer- Aye 

Director Pierson- Aye  

Director Wharton- Aye  

Director Farmer- Aye  
President Rice- Aye 

 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 

6. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 
 

A. RECEIVE AND DISCUSS WATER, SUSTAINABLE WATER FACILITY AND 
SEWER RATE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES, 
AND PROVIDE DIRECTION FOR MOVING FORWARD WITH THE 
PROPOSITION 218 PROCESS TO ADOPT PROPOSED RATE INCREASES 

 

Alex Handlers provided a presentation on the preliminary water, wastewater and sewer 
rates. He provided an overview of the rate increase recommendations. 

38



 

Board discussion followed. 
 

Public Comment: 
Tina Dickason 
Steven Provost 
Crosby Swartz 
Donald Archer 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Donn Howell 
Margie Sesser 
Leslie Richards 
Mary Webb  
Jerry McKinnon 

 

President Rice stated there is a problem on page 78 of the draft notice. 
 

Director Pierson had suggestions for staff to bring this back after identifying the District’s 
needs, prior to deciding on the rate increase. 

 

Director Bahringer hopes the notice will go out mid-June and have the hearing by the 
end of July. 

 
President Rice suggested holding two town hall meetings to get public input and work 
out various issues and have another board meeting to review the proposed rates. 
 
Vice President Bahringer agrees with this, but not to change the date to implement the 
rate increase. 

 
President Rice moved to refer the CIP list to the Infrastructure Committee at their May 
30, 2018 meeting and the underlying budgetary assumptions to the Finance Committee 
for their June 14, 2018 meeting. 
  
Vice President Bahringer seconded the motion with the amendment that the Finance 
Manager outline the items that were cut to make it a balanced budget for the Finance 
Committee, so it’s known what would be funded with the rates and what will not be 
funded with a balanced budget. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 
President Rice- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
 
Motion Passed: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 

Director Farmer moved to continue the meeting to 6:30 p.m. 
 
Vice President Bahringer seconded the motion. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 

39



 
Motion Passed: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 

President Rice moved to hold a town hall meeting regarding the rates on June 19, 2018 
at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Director Wharton seconded the motion. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
 
Motion Passed: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF AN AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT 
SERVICES WITH CLEVELAND BIOLOGICAL, LLC FOR ENVIRONMENTAL 
CONSULTATION 

 

General Manager Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to Bob Gresens. 
 
Mr. Gresens introduced Cindy Cleveland and provided a brief summary of the item. 
 
Ms. Cleveland answered a couple of questions by Board members. 

 

Public Comment:  
Tina Dickason  
Mary Webb 
Karen Dean 
Donn Howell 

 

Vice President Bahringer moved to continue for ten minutes until 6:40 p.m. 
 
Director Pierson seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote:  

Vice President Bahringer- Aye 

Director Pierson- Aye  

Director Wharton- Aye  

Director Farmer- Aye  
President Rice- Aye 

 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 

Vice President Bahringer moved to approve an agreement for consultant services with 
Cleveland Biological, LLC for environmental consultation. 

 

Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 

40



Director Farmer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 

 

Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 
Vice President Bahringer requested to start Regular Business Item 7.A. and President 
Rice agreed. 

 

C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AMENDED AGREEMENT 
FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES WITH TEKTEGRITY AND AUTHORIZE AN 
ADDITIONAL $1500 FOR LABOR COSTS 

 

Due to time constraints, this item wasn’t considered at the May 24, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

 

D. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ACTION ON APPROVED CAL OES 
HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM NOTICES OF INTEREST 

 

Due to time constraints, this item wasn’t considered at the May 24, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

 

E. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING REVIEW OF CCSD 
POLICIES AND POSSIBLE CREATION OF AD HOC COMMITTEE 

 

Due to time constraints, this item wasn’t considered at the May 24, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

 

F. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF THE PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2018/19 

 

This item was taken out of order at the request of the General Manager and approved by 
the Board of Directors. 

 

General Manager Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to the Finance Manager, 

Rudy Hernandez who presented the Board with a preliminary budget. 
 
Board discussion followed. 

 

Public Comment: 
Cindy Steidel 
Tina Dickason 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Mary Webb 

 

President Rice suggests the Board adopt a preliminary budget in June and the final 

budget in August.  

 

Consensus was reached to adopt a preliminary budget in June and the final budget in 

August.  

 

G. DISCUSSION AND REVIEW OF THE ASSIGNMENT OF BANKING POWERS 
FOR THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

41



Due to time constraints, this item wasn’t considered at the May 24, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

 

7. HEARINGS AND APPEALS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 
 

A. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 09-2018 CONFIRMING THE 
ITEMIZED REPORT OF WATER AND WASTEWATER STANDBY OR AVAILABILITY 
CHARGES FOR COLLECTION ON THE COUNTY TAX ROLLS 

 

President Rice introduced the item turned it over to District Counsel, who gave a brief 
summary and asked for any questions. 

 

President Rice opened the public hearing. 
 
 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
President Rice closed the public hearing. 

 

President Rice moved to adopt Resolution 09-2018 confirming the itemized report of 

Water and Wastewater Standby or Availability Charges. 
 

Vice President Bahringer seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
President Rice- Nay 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
 
Motion Passed: 4-Ayes (Bahringer, Wharton, Pierson, Farmer), 1-Nay (Rice), 0-Absent 
 

8. BOARD MEMBER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

A. Board Member and Committee Reports 
 

 Due to time constraints, this item wasn’t considered at the May 24, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

 
B. Finance Standing Committee Report 

 
 Due to time constraints, this item wasn’t considered at the May 24, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

 
9. MANAGER REPORTS 

 

A. General Manager's Report 
 

Due to time constraints, this item wasn’t considered at the May 24, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting. 
 

 

42



B. Finance Manager's Report 
 

Due to time constraints, this item wasn’t considered at the May 24, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

 

10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes) 
 

President Rice stated that in addition to the items that weren’t considered today, she’d 
like an item on the agenda for naming the facility.  
 
Vice President objected because in the EIR there are a thousand pages that refer to this 
name. 

 
President Rice moved to add naming the SWF to a future agenda.  
 
Director Farmer seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Nay 
 
Motion Passed: 4-Ayes (Rice, Farmer, Wharton, Pierson), 1-Nay (Bahringer), 0-Absent 

 
 

Director Wharton moved to have an item regarding various local agencies jointly meeting 
for a discussion on community issues. 
 
President Rice seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Wharton- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 
11. ADJOURN 

 
President Rice adjourned the meeting at 6:40 p.m. 

 

43



TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 4.C. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Rudy Hernandez, Finance Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018  Subject: CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF  
        RESOLUTION 15-2018 ESTABLISHING 
        FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019    
        APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt the attached Resolution 15-2018 
establishing the appropriations limit from tax proceeds for Fiscal Year 2018/2019.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
There are no fiscal or personnel impacts. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Annually, the CCSD is required to calculate the expenditure appropriations limit from tax 
proceeds to determine compliance with Propositions 4 (Gann Initiative) and 111 (Spending 
Limitation Act of 1990). This calculation is based on the previous year's appropriations limit 
multiplied by the per capita personal income percentage change and multiplied again by the 
population percentage change. The State Department of Finance provides both the population 
change and the per capita personal income change for the previous fiscal year.  
 
The CCSD is responsible for dividing revenues between tax and non-tax and applying the 
formula to the cumulative appropriations limit. For Fiscal Year 2018/2019, the appropriations 
limit has been calculated to be $2,975,012. 
  
This calculation means that the CCSD cannot receive more than $2,975,012 in tax-based 
revenues in Fiscal Year 2018/2019. The estimated tax-based revenues for Fiscal Year 
2018/2019 have been calculated to be $2,904,246, approximately $70,766 less than the 
appropriations limit. Therefore, the CCSD is in compliance with Article XIIIB of the California 
Constitution.  
 
 
 
 

Attachment: Resolution 15-2018  
           Exhibit A to Resolution 15-2018 
  
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER___FARMER ___ WHARTON___ PIERSON____ 

44



RESOLUTION 15-2018 
June 28, 2018 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ADOPTING A TAX PROCEEDS EXPENDITURE  

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Sections 7900 et seq. provide for the effective and 
efficient implementation of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Sections 7900 et seq. provide that each year, the 
governing body of each local agency shall, by resolution, establish the tax proceeds 
expenditure appropriations limit. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria 
Community Services District as follows: 
 

The appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 is hereby established at Two Million 
Nine Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Twelve Dollars ($2,975,012). 
 

Documentation used in the determination of the tax proceeds expenditure 
appropriations limit is attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 

This Resolution is effective upon adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 28th day of June, 2018. 
 

AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
  

 
      
Amanda Rice, President  
Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Monique Madrid, District Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 
 

 
       

45



46



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 4.D. 
       
FROM:  Jerry Gruber, General Manager 

William Hollingsworth, Fire Chief         
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date:  June 28, 2018  Subject: CONSIDERATION  OF ACTION ON  
        APPROVED CAL OES HAZARD  
        MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM  
        NOTICES OF INTEREST 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:   
Staff recommends that the Board authorize pursuit of formal applications to the California Office 
of Emergency Services (Cal OES) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) subsequent to 
approved Notices of Interest (NOI) submitted for eligible grant activity identified as the following: 
 

• Fuel Reduction – Burton Drive Canyon, above Village Lane towards Santa Lucia Middle 
School (DR-4353-0070) 

• Fuel Reduction – Highway 1 Corridor, from Burton Drive north towards Cambria Drive 
(DR-4353-0071) 

• Fuel Reduction – Cambria Pines Road Corridor, from Highway 1 to Buckley Drive (DR-
4353-0072) 

• Fuel Reduction – Camp Yeager/Camp Ocean Pines/Randall corridor (DR-4353-0073) 

• Seismic and Vulnerability Study and Mitigation for CCSD Infrastructure (Dr-4353-0074) 

• Fuel Reduction – Southern border of town (DR-4353-0076) 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
The probable fiscal impact to the budget is in the amount of $20,000.00 for required matching 
funds, plus the impact on staff time for application preparation and grant management. If 
approved, the final grant awards will be 75% funded from FEMA through Cal OES with a 25% 
local match (see below chart). 
 

Project Title Explanation 
Total 
Estimate 
Project Cost 

FEMA Share 
(75%) 

CCSD Share 
(25%) 

NIO DR-4353-
0070 

Fuel Reduction $64,000.00 $48,000.00 $16,000.00 

NIO DR-4353-
0071 

Fuel Reduction $127,000.00 $95,250.00 $31,750.00 

NIO DR-4353-
0072 

Fuel Reduction $80,000.00 $60,000.00 $20,000.00 

NIO DR-4353-
0073 

Fuel Reduction $64,000.00 $48,000.00 $16,000.00 

47



NIO DR-4353-
0074 

Seismic and 
Vulnerability 
Study and 
Mitigation 

$80,000.00 $60,000.00 $20,000.00 

NIO DR-4353-
0076 

Fuel Reduction $32,000.00 $24,000.00 $8,000.00 

 
Total Estimated 
Cost 

$447,000.00 $335,250.00 $111,750.00 

 

Costs Eligible for 
Potential 
Firesafe Council 
Match 

  $91,750.00 

 
Remaining Costs 
Paid by CCSD 

  $20,000.00 

 
All projects have a 36-month performance period and must be completed within that time. All 
fuel reduction projects are eligible for matching funds through the Firesafe Council from State 
funded grants already received. Current grant funding is available through December of 2019, 
with a high probability of additional grant funding from current applications; however, if additional 
funding is not awarded, the remaining 25% will need to be paid by the CCSD. All current fuel 
reduction efforts expended by the CCSD are also eligible to act as part of the required match.   
There will be considerable staff time required to formalize and apply for the six separate 
mitigation grants listed above. For any grant ultimately approved, additional staff time will be 
required to manage the grant through the entire period of performance.   
 
DISCUSSION:  
As a result of the declaration of a major federal disaster, the State of California is eligible for 
HMGP funding. The State has established priorities to accept project sub-applications from sub-
applicants statewide, State agencies, tribal governments, local governments, and private non-
profits. 
 
Hazard mitigation activities are aimed at reducing or eliminating future damages. Activities 
include cost effective hazard mitigation projects and hazard mitigation plans subject to approval 
by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).   
 
In March of 2018, the CCSD applied for seven separate HMGP NOIs secondary to the disaster 
declaration caused by the 2017 California Wildfires. The CCSD has been notified by Cal OES 
that six of those NOI applications were successful. For all eligible NOIs, the CCSD will need to 
complete the full application package available through the Cal OES website. This can be 
accomplished by staff, with input from specialists, or by hiring a separate firm to complete the 
application in its entirety.  If the CCSD choses to hire out this function, there will be a cost 
associated with completing the applications.   All costs associated with preparing the applications 
will be reimbursed IF the application is approved and funded. 
 
Timeline: 

• HMGP NOI sub-application due March 15, 2018 

48



• HMGP grant training for eligible NOIs June and July 

• HMGP full sub-application due to Cal OES September 1, 2018 

• State review process 

• State submits all applications by January 2, 2019 

• FEMA review process and awarding of projects - TBD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___  RICE ____ BAHRINGER ___ FARMER ___ WHARTON ___ PIERSON ___ 

49



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO.  4.E. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager  
  
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018 Subject: CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF 
        RESOLUTION 18-2018 APPROVING 
        AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
        WITH WILLIAM S. HOLLINGSWORTH 
       

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 18-2018 approving an 
Employment Agreement with William S. Hollingsworth as the CCSD’s Fire Chief. 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Approval of the attached Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) will result in a continued annual 
salary of $145,583, which is Step E for Fire Chief in the Annual Salary Schedule for Cambria 
Exempt Employees. There is no increase in salary at this time; however, raises may be 
negotiated annually. As in his previous agreement, the Fire Chief will also receive a $100 match 
per payroll period to the 457 deferred compensation plan, an annual $1,000 uniform and boot 
allowance, and the CCSD will pay costs associated with DMV physicals and paramedic 
reaccreditation. He will have the use of a CCSD provided vehicle and cell phone or cell phone 
stipend for business purposes, and the District will pay $600 per year for professional dues and 
publications, as well as $3,500 per year for meetings and conferences. In addition, the 
termination notice period increases from 5 months to 6 months and administrative leave 
increases from 40 hours to 80 hours, effective upon approval of the Agreement.  
 
 

DISCUSSION: 
The CCSD has historically retained its Fire Chief by contract. The Board of Directors approved 
an employment agreement with William S. Hollingsworth to be the CCSD Fire Chief on May 26, 
2016 for a two-year term. Chief Hollingsworth has proved to be an effective and conscientious 
Fire Chief and staff recommends he continue in the position. Accordingly, the attached 
Agreement, which has a five and one-half year term, has been negotiated by the General 
Manager and Chief Hollingsworth for the Board’s consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments: Resolution 18-2018 
Exhibit “A” - Employment Agreement with William S. Hollingsworth 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:___RICE___ BAHRINGER ___ FARMER ___ WHARTON___PIERSON____ 

50



 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-2018 

June 28, 2018 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

APPROVING AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

WITH WILLIAM S. HOLLINGSWORTH  

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District 

as follows: 

 

1. The Employment Agreement between the Cambria Community Services District 

and William S. Hollingsworth, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” is hereby approved. 

 

2. The Board President is authorized to execute the Employment Agreement on 

behalf of the Cambria Community Services District. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June, 2018. 

 

              
       Amanda Rice, President 
       Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

              
Monique Madrid     Timothy J. Carmel  
District Clerk       District Counsel 

51



 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

This Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into the 28th day 
of June, 2018, by and between the Cambria Community Services District (hereinafter 
referred to as “Employer”) and William S. Hollingsworth (hereinafter referred to as 
“Employee”), who understand as follows: 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of Employee as Fire Chief; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of Employer to provide certain benefits, establish certain 
conditions of employment and to set working conditions of Employee; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of Employer to receive and retain the services of Employee 
and to provide for Employee to remain in such employment; to make possible full work 
productivity by assuring Employee’s morale and peace of mind with respect to future 
security; to act as a deterrent against malfeasance, misfeasance or substandard 
performance on Employee’s part; and to provide for terminating Employee’s services at 
such time as Employee may be unable to fully discharge Employee’s duties or when 
Employer may otherwise desire to terminate Employee’s employ; and 

 
WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as Fire Chief. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the 
parties agree as follows: 

 
1. DUTIES OF FIRE CHIEF 

 
Employee agrees to perform the functions and duties of the position of Fire Chief and any 
additional duties as may be assigned from time to time.  A general description of the 
duties and responsibilities of the Fire Chief is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. Unless otherwise agreed to by the General Manager, Employee shall provide 
his services based upon a nine (9) day/eighty (80) hour work schedule. 

 
2. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 

The Agreement commences with an effective date of June 28, 2018 and shall remain in 
effect until December 31, 2023. 

 
A. Nothing shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of Employer 

to terminate the services of Employee at any time, subject only to the 
provisions set forth in Section 3. 

52



B. Nothing shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of Employee 
to resign at any time from Employee’s position with Employer, subject only 
to the provisions set forth in Section 3. 

 
3. TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY 

 

A. Employer may terminate this agreement without cause, for any reason or 
for no reason, on six (6) months’ notice to Employee. If this Agreement is 
terminated by Employer or by operation of law, Employee shall continue to 
work and receive Employee’s salary and other compensation during the 
notice period. In the alternative and at its sole discretion, Employer may 
terminate Employee at any time during the notice period and, in that event, 
Employer agrees to pay Employee a lump sum cash payment equal to the 
remaining salary for the notice period and pay Employee’s COBRA benefits 
equal to the notice period; provided, however, Employer shall have no 
obligation to provide such notice, severance pay and benefits in the event 
Employee is terminated for good cause. For the purpose of this Agreement, 
“good cause” shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, any of the 
following: 

 
1. A material breach of the terms of this Agreement; 

 
2. A failure to perform duties in a professional and responsible manner 

consistent with generally accepted standards of the profession; and 
 

3. Conduct unbecoming the position of Fire Chief or likely to bring 
discredit or embarrassment to the CCSD. 

 
“Good cause” shall not mean a mere loss of support or confidence by the 
General Manager. 

 
B. In the event Employee voluntarily resigns Employee’s position with 

Employer, Employee shall give Employer thirty (30) days’ advance written 
notice, unless the parties agree otherwise. 

 
4. SALARY 

 

Employer agrees to pay Employee for Employee’s services as Fire Chief the amount of 
$145,583 per year, which is Step E for the position of Fire Chief, as set forth in the 
Annual Salary Schedule for Cambria Exempt Employees. Employee’s compensation 
shall be payable in the same manner and at the same time as other employees of 
Employer are paid. Subsequent increases in salary may be considered annually at 
performance evaluation time and as otherwise approved by the CCSD Board of 
Directors. 
 
 

 

53



5. OTHER COMPENSATION 
 

Employer agrees to provide Employee additional compensation and benefits as provided 
to other management employees of the CCSD. In addition, Employee shall receive the 
following benefits: 

 
A. Employer agrees to match Employee contributions to Employer-sponsored 

supplemental retirement fund (“457 Plan”) up to $100 per payroll period. 
 

B. Employee shall accrue 80 hours of administrative leave per year. 
 

C. Employer shall provide Employee with a vehicle for business related use. 
The Fire Chief’s response vehicle shall be equipped with the necessary 
equipment to facilitate emergency response, and command and control 
communications. The vehicle may be used by Employee for normal 
business activities, travel to and from work, call outs and inspections, 
attendance at professional meetings, training programs, seminars, 
conferences, and for attendance at community and regional meetings, 
events and any functions related to Employee’s official capacity. 

 
D. Employee shall be provided with a cell phone or stipend, paid for by 

Employer. 
 

E. Employee shall receive $1,000 annually as a uniform and boot allowance. 
 

6. REQUIRED LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS 
 

Employer agrees to pay $225 annually, or up to $550 biennially, for the costs associated 
with required DMV physicals related to the DMV Firefighter Endorsement, and for 
Paramedic reaccreditation. It is understood by the parties that Employee plans on 
maintaining his Paramedic accreditation; however, Employee will not receive Paramedic 
“specialty compensation” or assignment pay in his capacity as Fire Chief. 

 
7. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

 

Employee shall be entitled to the following for costs associated with activities and 
materials deemed necessary and desirable for Employee’s continued professional 
development, participation, growth and advancement: 

 
A. $600 annually for professional dues and subscriptions necessary for full 

participation in appropriate and relevant associations and organizations, 
including, but not limited to, the International Association of Fire Chiefs, 
California Fire Prevention Officers, and CalChiefs; 

54



B. $3,500 annually for travel and subsistence expenses for professional 
meetings and similar functions (e.g., conferences, workshops, seminars, 
meetings, etc.) to foster professional development or represent the CCSD; 

 
C. Other items, activities and materials as may be agreed upon from time to 

time between Employee and Employer. 
 

Expenditures for items within this section shall be within the CCSD’s budgeted amounts 
for the appropriate category. 

 
8. PERFORMANCE REVIEWS 

 

Employee shall receive an annual performance review on or around the anniversary of 
this Agreement. 

 
9. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

The text herein shall constitute the entire Agreement between the parties. Any 
amendments must be in writing and executed by both parties. This Agreement shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and executors of Employee. 

 
If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained herein is held unconstitutional, invalid 
or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion thereof, shall be deemed 
severable, shall not be affected, and shall remain in full force and effect. The laws of the 
State of California shall govern this Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Employer and Employee have signed and executed this 
Agreement, both in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

 
Employee: 

 

 
 

William S. Hollingsworth 
Fire Chief 

Employer: 
 

 
 

Jerome D. Gruber 
General Manager 

 Amanda Rice 
Board President 

55



 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

FIRE CHIEF 
 

This is a Management-Exempt Contract Position 

 
DEFINITION 

Under direction of the General Manager, the Fire Chief shall be responsible for the 
administration, operations and functions of all the activities of the fire department, 
personnel, equipment, properties and assets and liabilities both from an operational and 
managerial standpoint. This will involve a total program for the protection and 
preservation of life and property. The position requires broad knowledge and a thorough 
understanding of modern fire administration, personnel management, fire prevention, 
fire training, fire suppression, and concepts and methods necessary to facilitate the 
determination of varied work, challenges and problems. The Fire Chief must be capable 
of working independently in supervising all technical and general operations seeing that 
desired work results are achieved. In addition to administrative responsibilities, the Fire 
Chief is expected to direct and supervise fire-fighting resources at the scene of 
emergencies and actively participate in fire control operations as needed. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES 

Include, but not limited to the following: 
• Accepts full responsibility for all Fire Department activities, operations and 

services including the areas of fire prevention, fire suppression, training, 
inspections, investigations, hazardous materials, disaster preparedness, 
emergency medical aid, rescue, and code enforcement. 

• Develops, implements, and maintains Fire Department goals, objectives, policies 
and priorities for appropriate services; ensures that established goals and 
priorities are achieved; develops a strategy and work plan for the successful 
achievement of program and project goals. 

• Plans, directs and coordinates the Fire Department work plan through direct 
supervision of officers and appropriate department staff; assigns work activities 
and responsibilities to appropriate department personnel; reviews and evaluates 
work methods and procedures; identifies and resolves problems and/or issues. 

• Analyzes operational and service demands and devises plans to satisfy needs. 
• Informs the General Manager of safety services issues and of department 

activities. 
• Administers prevention programs within the District including weed abatement, 

plan checks and inspections. Works closely with cooperating agencies and 
various fire safety advisory groups to reduce fire hazards in the District through 
monitoring and updating the District 5-Year Fire Protection Master Plan. 

• Reviews and evaluates service delivery methods and systems including 
administrative and support systems and internal relationships; identifies 
opportunities for improvement and implements changes to standard operating 
guidelines to enhance services based on new technology or changes in the law. 

• Oversees the selection, training and evaluation programs for Fire personnel; 

56



provides or coordinates staff training; identifies and resolves staff deficiencies; 
executes discipline. 

• Acts as District’s Fire Marshal. 
• Monitors all Department personnel performance, conducts employee 

performance evaluations, recognizes positive and negative performance and 
takes appropriate actions. 

• Makes or oversees periodic personnel inspections and general inspections of 
vehicles, apparatus and facilities. 

• Serves as Emergency Operations Manager for the District and manages in all 
phases of Disaster Preparedness programs including the preparation and 
execution of emergency response plans for other District departments and the 
community. 

• Cultivates good community relations by appearing before civic, fraternal and other 
community groups. 

• Prepares and administers the Fire Department's budget; monitors, reviews and 
approves expenditures; advises appropriate department personnel on budget 
matters; makes adjustments to the budget as is necessary. 

• Advises the General Manager on service needs. 
• Attends and participates in organizational, professional, and community meetings 

as necessary. 
• Implements and oversees hazardous materials programs. 
• Oversees the coordination, monitoring and updating of mutual and automatic aid 

programs. 
• Takes personal command of firefighting activities at major fires and other 

emergency situations as necessary. 
• Stays current on issues relative to the full ranges of departmental services. 
• Responds to and resolves sensitive and complex community and organizational 

inquiries and complaints. 
• Represents the Fire Department to other departments, divisions and 

organizations; coordinates departmental activities with other departments and 
organizations. 

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

This is a management position which may require working outside of normal hours such 
as, weekends, holidays, and standby duty as required to discharge the operations of the 
Department. 

KNOWLEDGE/SKILLS/ABILITIES 

Knowledge of: 
• techniques of operating principles and practices used in urban and suburban fire 

suppression, prevention, investigation, communications, training, emergency 
medical services, labor relations, disaster preparedness and hazardous 
materials; 

• emergency medical vehicles, apparatus, tools, equipment, devices, facilities and 
their proper utilization and maintenance requirements; 

• principles and practices of budget administration; 
• methods and techniques of supervision, training and motivation; 

57



• applicable federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations; 
• occupational hazards and standard safety practices; 
• GIS and its application to the Fire Department; 
• methods and techniques for basic report preparation and writing; 
• methods and techniques for record keeping; 
• proper English, spelling and grammar. 

58



Skill to: 
• operate a computer and use applicable software, i.e. Windows Excel; 

• operate two-way radio and other communications equipment. 

Ability to: 
• Plan, organize, implement, direct and evaluate department operations and 

the work of subordinate staff; 
• make sound decisions and direct operations at the scene of all incidents; 
• manage a comprehensive fire prevention and investigation program; 
• select and supervise subordinate staff; 
• manage and oversee the operations and activities of the department; 
• supervise and direct the operations and activities of the department; 
• courteously respond to community issues, concerns and needs; 
• analyze a complex issue and develop and implement an appropriate response; 
• prepare clear and concise administrative and financial reports; 
• prepare and administer a municipal budget; 
• analyze and evaluate new and existing methods and standard operating 

procedures; 
• make adjustments to standard operating procedures as is appropriate; 
• apply applicable laws, codes and regulations; 
• work independently; 
• communicate effectively, both orally and in writing; 
• understand and follow instructions; 
• establish and maintain effective working relationships. 

REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS 

Education/Training 

Education equivalent to graduation from high school and seven years of general 
firefighting and fire marshal experience, including three years at the supervisory level, 
or five years full-time firefighting experience and a relevant degree from an accredited 
college or university, including three years at the supervisory level, or any equivalent 
combination of education and experience. 

 

Licenses/Certifications 
Possession of a current Class "B" California Driver's License (must maintain 
satisfactory DMV record and ability to maintain insurability); Advanced First Aid & CPR 
cards; and Emergency Medical Technician I (EMT1) and State Certified Firefighter 
Certificates. 

59



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

TO:  Board of Directors     AGENDA NO.  4.F. 

 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018 Subject: CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 

  16-2018 REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION  
  OF THE CCSD 2018 BIENNIAL ELECTION 
  WITH THE NOVEMBER 6, 2018   
  CONSOLIDATED GENERAL ELECTION 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 16-2018 requesting that the 
CCSD 2018 Biennial Election be consolidated with the November 6, 2018 Consolidated General 
Election for San Luis Obispo County. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Consolidating the CCSD's election with other elections significantly reduces the CCSD’s cost to 
print the ballot (exact cost undetermined at this time, but estimated to be $5,000). 
 
DISCUSSION: 
There will be three positions on the CCSD Board of Directors that will be filled in the November 
6, 2018 General Election.  
 

• Vice President Jim Bahringer’s and Director Aaron Wharton’s terms will expire in 
December of 2018; the individuals elected to those positions will serve four-year terms 
beginning December 7, 2018 and ending December 2, 2022.  

 

• Director David Pierson was appointed to fill the remainder of the first half of former 
Director Greg Sanders’ term, which will expire in December of 2018, as well. The 
individual elected to that position will serve a two-year term beginning December 7, 2018 
and ending December 4, 2020.  

 
The attached Resolution requesting consolidation of the CCSD’s biennial election with the 
November 6, 2018 San Luis Obispo County General Election must be filed no later than Friday, 
August 10, 2018 with the County Elections Official. 
 
Also attached for the Board’s reference is the County's General Election Key Dates and 
Deadlines, which further describes the elections process and deadlines. 
 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution No. 16-2018 

2018 Consolidated General Election Key Dates and Deadlines (San Luis Obispo 
County Clerk-Recorder) 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE___ BAHRINGER ___FARMER ___ WHARTON____PIERSON___ 

60



 
RESOLUTION 16-2018 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF THE CCSD BIENNIAL ELECTION WITH THE 

NOVEMBER 6, 2018 CONSOLIDATED GENERAL ELECTION 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Sections 10500 et seq., an election is to be 
conducted on November 6, 2018, to fill offices on the Cambria Community Services District 
(“CCSD”) Board of Directors; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10555, said election may be 
consolidated with any other election, pursuant to the procedures set forth in Elections Code 
Sections 10400 et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, the CCSD Board of Directors has determined that it should request that 
the San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors consolidate the CCSD Biennial Election 
with any other San Luis Obispo County General Election that will be held on the same day. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Cambria Community Services District 
Board of Directors as follows:  

1.  The Board of Supervisors of San Luis Obispo County is hereby requested to 
consolidate the Biennial District Election of the CCSD to be held on November 6, 2018, with 
any other San Luis Obispo County General Election held on the same date. This request is 
made pursuant to Elections Code §§ 10555 and 10400, et seq. The Board of Directors agrees 
to reimburse the County of San Luis Obispo in full for services performed relating to this 
election, upon presentation of an invoice. 

2.  The offices to be voted on are two (2) full term positions and one (1) two-year term 
position on the Board of Directors. 

By unanimous vote on the motion of Director _______________, seconded by Director 
___________________ Resolution No. 16-2018 is hereby adopted this 28th day of June, 2018. 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

 
 
             
      Amanda Rice 
      President, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Monique Madrid    Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk     District Counsel 

61



62



63



64



65



66



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 4.G. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date:  June 28, 2018 Subject: CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF  
  RESOLUTION 19-2018 UPDATING THE  
  ASSIGNMENT OF BANKING POWERS FOR 
  CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES   
  DISTRICT 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution 19-2018 updating the banking powers 
authority as listed in the attached Exhibit A, Authorized Banking Powers. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
On February 22, 2018, staff made a recommendation and the Board approved a change to the 
assignment of banking powers based on the following reasons: 
 

• Too broad (too many employees on the assignment of banking powers list). 

• To strengthen internal controls. External auditors prefer a short list of authorized 
signers/assignment of banking powers. 

• Each time a new Finance Manager or Board Member is appointed an updated 
authorization form must be provided to the bank. 
 

After careful review of the current banking powers, a clerical error was discovered. Under the 
description of who held “All Powers,” the list stated “none”; however, three individuals were 
actually authorized with all of the available banking powers. Therefore, staff has reviewed the 
assignment of powers list and made appropriate revisions. The assignment of powers that was 
adopted in January of 2017 has been revised and is presented in redline version today for the 
Board’s review and approval.   
 
 
Attachment:  Resolution 19-2018 
  Exhibit A to Resolution 19-2018 
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER ___ FARMER____WHARTON____PIERSON_____ 

67



RESOLUTION 19-2018 
June 28, 2018 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

UPDATING THE ASSIGNMENT OF BANKING POWERS FOR THE  
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

  
WHEREAS, the Cambria Community Services District (“CCSD”) has bank 
accounts at Pacific Premier Bank (PPB), as well as an investment account with 
the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”); and 
 
WHEREAS, PPB and LAIF require an approved resolution specifying which 
banking powers are assigned to CCSD officials and staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to update the assignment of banking powers for the 
CCSD’s bank and investment accounts. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the 
Cambria Community Services District that banking powers are hereby granted to 
the individuals listed within the attached Exhibit “A,” which is incorporated herein 
by this reference. This Resolution supersedes all previously adopted Resolutions 
relating to banking powers.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June, 2018. 
 
 
            
             
       Amanda Rice    
       President, Board of Directors 
 
  
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Monique Madrid     Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk      District Counsel 

68



           Page 1 of 2 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION 19-2018 

June 28, 2018 

AUTHORIZED BANKING POWERS 

 

AGENT’S NAME AND TITLE OR POSITION 

 

A Amanda Rice, President 

B Jim Bahringer, Vice President 

C Harry Farmer, Director 

D Aaron Wharton, Director 

E David Pierson, Director 

F Jerry Gruber, General Manager 

G Rudy Hernandez, Finance Manager 

H Robert Gresens, District Engineer 

I Mary Cox, Administrative Technician III 

J Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer 

K Vacant, Administrative Technician III 

L Stephanie Salvi, Administrative Technician III 

M Haley Dodson, Deputy District Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

Holder of  Description of Power        No. of Signatures 

  Power          Required 

 

None   All Powers Listed.           N/A 
 

F,J   Open any deposit or share account(s) in the name of the CCSD.         2 
 

A,B,C,D,E,G,J  Endorse Checks and orders for the payment of money or to           2 
   otherwise withdraw or transfer funds on deposit. 
 

F,J Upon receiving Board of Directors’ approval, borrow money               2  

                                    on behalf and in the name of the CCSD, sign, execute  

                                     and deliver promissory notes or other evidence of indebtedness. 
 

F,J Enter into a written lease for the purpose of renting, maintaining,           2 
   accessing and terminating a safe deposit box. 
 

A,B,C,D,E,F Endorse, assign, transfer, mortgage or pledge bills receivable, warehouse        2 
 receipts, bills of lading, stocks, bonds, real estate or other property now or  

hereafter owned or acquired by the CCSD as security for sums borrowed, 

 and to discount the same, unconditionally guarantee the payment of all bills 

 received, negotiated or discounted and to waive demand, presentment,  

protest, notice of protest and notice of non-payment. 

 
 

           

69



 

 

 

           Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 

Holder of  Description of Power        No. of Signatures 

  Power          Required 

 

F,G,J   Transfer LAIF funds into/out of CCSD bank accounts.        N/A  
 

G,I,J   Issue stop-payment of checks and order for payment of money        N/A 
   and like activities. 
 

G,I,J,K,L,M Make account inquires and deposits.          N/A 
 

G,I,J,K,L,M  Pick up bank statements.               1 
 

G,J,K   Recurring electronic payment of federal and California payroll taxes.       N/A 
 

G,J,K   Recurring electronic payroll direct deposits.           N/A 
 

G,,I,J,K,L  Recurring electronic deposits into CCSD accounts.         N/A 
 

G,I,J   Recurring electronic transfers between CCSD accounts.        N/A 
 

G,I,J   Recurring manual transfers between CCSD accounts.                    1 

 

 

70



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors     AGENDA NO.  4.H. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018 Subject: CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF  
        PG&E PROPOSAL TO INITIATE THE  
        PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT OF A  
        DESIGN-BUILD ENERGY PROJECT  
        AT THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT  
        FACILITY THROUGH THE   
        SUSTAINABLE SOLUTIONS   
        TURNKEY (SST) PROGRAM 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends the Board approve the attached proposal from PG&E to initiate the 
preliminary assessment of a design-build energy project at the wastewater treatment plant 
through their Sustainable Solutions Turnkey (SST) Program. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact identified at this time based on the assessment stage of the project.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
PG&E’s SST Program is designed to assist customers in completing comprehensive and 
integrated energy projects through a fully managed design-build implementation process.  
Projects are developed to reduce the customer’s utility consumption, operating costs and carbon 
footprint through an appropriate combination of efficiency, demand management, process 
improvement and on-site generation measures. Savings generated from the project are then 
leveraged to offset project costs. 
 
CCSD staff has met several times with Brent Patera from PG&E to discuss the first step in such 
a project, which would be a preliminary assessment of a design-build energy project at the 
District’s  wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). The proposal prepared by Mr. Patera further 
explains the process.  Also attached is the PowerPoint presentation that Mr. Patera made to the 
CCSD Infrastructure Committee on May 30, 2018. 
 
In addition to his presentation to the Infrastructure Committee, Mr. Patera has met with the 
General Manager, District Engineer, and all of the CCSD Wastewater staff to discuss PG&E’s 
proposal.  It is well known that significant improvements need to be made to the WWTP, starting 
with the motor control center motors, blowers, pumps, and the aeration system. Staff believes 
that this is a tremendous opportunity to partner with PG&E to not only significantly reduce the 
District’s energy costs on an annual basis, but also to address and resolve major infrastructure 
deficiencies at the WWTP.  
 
There is no cost to the District for the preliminary assessment. PG&E will prepare a financial 
analysis, as well as investigate the availability of grants, loans, utility programs and other 
financing options for the plant improvements. There are numerous funding alternatives from 
multiple sources that are available through the District’s collaboration with PG&E, once the 
scope of the project is better defined.   
 

71



As previously noted, PG&E provided the Infrastructure Committee with a presentation describing 
the preliminary assessment of a design-build energy project at the WWTP through their SST 
Program and the Infrastructure Committee supports moving forward with the process.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: PG&E Proposal for Preliminary Assessment 

              PG&E PowerPoint slideshow 
 

 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER___ FARMER ___WHARTON____ PIERSON____ 
 

72



 

 

June 12, 2018 

 

 

Mr. Jerry Gruber, MPA 

General Manager 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

1316 Tamsen Drive, Suite 201 

Cambria, CA 93428 

 

RE: Proposal for Preliminary Assessment – Waste Water Treatment Facility, 

 

Jerry 

 

Please accept my thanks to you, the staff and the Board of Directors for the opportunity 

to continue our investigation of an integrated energy project at CCSD facilities.  The 

following is our proposal to initiate the Preliminary Assessment of a design-build energy 

project at the Waste Water Treatment Facility through our Sustainable Solutions 

Turnkey (SST) Program. 

 

As we have discussed, Pacific Gas and Electric Company is prepared to move forward 

with the proposed work at no cost to CCSD following receipt of the Board’s approval to 

do so. 

 

Please review the information provided below and let me know if you have any 

questions or need additional detail. Our plan would be to schedule a kick off meeting in 

your offices as soon as is convenient following receipt of the appropriate approvals. 

 

Thank you again for the opportunity to be of service to CCSD and I look forward to 

continuing our work together. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 

Brent 
Brent Patera 

Senior Business Development Manager 

Turnkey Energy Solutions 

73



 

The following is provided by Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) to Cambria 

Community Services District (“District”) in response to the District’s request to 

participate in the Sustainable Solutions Turnkey (SST) Program. As further defined in 

Attachment A below, the SST Program provides “end to end” turnkey services which are 

intended to follow a defined process and ultimately result in design-build implementation 

of suitable facility upgrade projects. 

 

Toward that end, PG&E is proposing to provide the following services to the District 

through the SST Program as soon as is feasible following the District’s acceptance of 

the process set forth below. 

 

As the first step in the SST project development process, PG&E will conduct a 

Preliminary Assessment (PA) of the District’s Waste Water Treatment Facility upon 

receipt of Notice to Proceed (NTP).  The goal of the PA is to confirm suitability for the 

SST Program and to characterize the viability of implementing energy-related and 

process-improvement upgrades as identified during the assessment, including 

equipment or systems that are obsolete or at the end of their useful life. 

 

The following defines the scope of the assessment: 

 

1) Kick-Off Meeting:  PG&E will schedule, coordinate and lead a Project “Kick-Off” 

Meeting to establish the “ground rules” for the process.  Among other topics, the 

meeting agenda will include points-of-contact (POCs), roles & responsibilities, 

communication methods and intervals, facility access, hours of operation and 

safety as it relates to both physical/premise safety and data integrity.  An agenda 

will be sent to all attendees in advance to ensure an efficient and productive 

meeting.  The District will coordinate with PG&E to have the appropriate staff 

available for this meeting.   

2) Utility Evaluation:  PG&E will complete an assessment of all utility costs paid by 

the District as defined by utility bills, SCADA metering and other methods to 

establish a current utility baseline for consumption and cost.  In addition to gas, 

electricity and water, utilities may include hauling, chemicals. polymer or other 

process elements as appropriate.  While this work will be primarily focused on 

the treatment plant location, this investigation may extend to other District  sites 

as appropriate.  The District will provide utility-related data to PG&E, and will 

execute a Third Party Data Release Form to authorize PG&E to share District 

data with outside PG&E project consultants as necessary.  

74



3) Permits & Licenses: PG&E will review permits, licenses, regulations and other 

operating governance to ensure a thorough understanding of the current, 

pending and/or future implications to plant facilities and operations. 

4) Site Assessment:  PG&E will conduct on-site audit(s) of the treatment plant 

systems and processes to ensure an understanding and characterization of the 

plant and methods of operation.  For the purposes of completing this work, the 

District will provide PG&E and its consultants appropriate access to the physical 

premises, equipment/systems, MCCs, etc., specifically including SCADA 

screens, reports, etc., upon execution by PG&E of any release that may be 

required. 

5) Staff Meetings/Interviews:   PG&E will arrange and conduct meetings and 

interviews with appropriate administration, engineering, operations, maintenance, 

capital projects and/or finance staff.  The purpose of these meetings/interviews is 

to ensure that PG&E has an understanding of the District’s facility, methods of 

operation, long-term capital plan as well as the specific goals of a potential 

energy project; including goals for both financial and operational performance.  

The District will coordinate with PG&E to ensure appropriate staff members are 

available for these meetings. 

6) Requests for Information (RFI):  From time-to-time, PG&E will submit requests 

to the District for various forms of information related to our investigation (RFIs).   

The District will provide any available information upon request. 

7) Plant Improvements:  Based on our investigation, PG&E will assess and 

characterize all plant improvements which would result in energy savings, 

reductions in operating cost (including utility costs) and/or improved operating 

conditions.  For each improvement opportunity, the assessment would include a 

summary description of the proposed work as well as planning level estimates for 

implementation cost, savings and implementation schedule. 

8)  Financial Analysis:  PG&E will prepare financial analysis of any/all proposed 

work, including preliminary cash flows, ROI, IRR, TLCC or other methods to 

ensure the District has a full understanding of the potential investment.  The 

District will provide PG&E with the preferred format or methodology to be used 

for this analysis.  

9)  Project Funding:  PG&E will investigate the availability of grants, loans, utility 

programs or other forms of “financing” that could be used to partially or entirely 

fund plant improvements.  As part of this effort, PG&E will place a particular 

priority on characterizing available funds from the State Revolving Fund (SRF) 

and/or other related Federal, State, Regional or Local sources, including low-cost 

utility and California Energy Commission (CEC) energy efficiency financing.  The 

District will promptly consider submittal of any appropriate applications or 

requests for consideration upon receipt of supporting information from PG&E. 

75



 

Deliverable(s) 

PG&E will prepare and present a summary of our findings from the work outlined above.  

PG&E will share interim findings regularly with the District during the process; however 

it is our intention to deliver a single Draft Assessment at 90% completion for District staff 

review and comment, and a single Final Assessment that would address any 

comments, corrections or additions resulting from the District’s input.  The Assessment 

will convey information through written descriptions, graphs, figures, data tables, images 

and/or any other method appropriate for effectively delivering the information to the 

District. 

 

Review Meetings 

PG&E will arrange and lead project review meetings at approximately 50% and 90% 

(Draft) completion.  These review meetings will allow for PG&E and District staff to 

collaborate on findings, strategy and format to ensure that the final Preliminary 

Assessment meets the District’s goals and objectives. 

 

Cost 

The Preliminary Assessment will be provided by PG&E at no cost to the District.  

However, it must be acknowledged that the District will be required to invest staff time to 

ensure the successful outcome of the work. 

 

Schedule 

The duration of the work effort is estimated to be eight (8) weeks from the date PG&E 

receives NTP and necessary information requested from USD.  Upon receipt of NTP, 

PG&E will submit a preliminary schedule noting the milestones for site visits, meetings, 

application dates and submittal of the final report. 

 

PG&E and USD recognize that the successful completion of this effort is reliant upon 

respective commitments outlined above.    

 

  

76



Next Steps 

Following receipt and consideration of the Final PA, the District and PG&E shall make a 

mutual determination as to which improvements should be carried into the next phase of 

the SST Program process – the Investment Grade Audit.   PG&E agrees to prepare and 

present an IGA proposal within two (2) weeks following mutual selection of the 

proposed improvements.  PG&E acknowledges that any further agreements or 

commitments associated with the SST Program may require review and approval by the 

District’s Board of Directors. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 

 

 

 

Brent Patera 

Senior Business Development Manager 

 

 

 

 

___________________________   ________________ 

Jerry Gruber, MPA     Date 

General Manager 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

  

77



 

Attachment A 

 

Pacific Gas & Electric Company – Sustainable Solutions Turnkey (SST) Program 

 

Background 

For over 40 years, the State of California has been a global leader in energy policy.  

The governor, the legislature and the California Public Utilities Commission have 

challenged all citizens, businesses and energy utilities to develop innovative 

approaches to reduce the State’s consumption of energy and to minimize the 

investment required to build new generation and network facilities. 

 

As indicated in the table below, statewide efforts in energy efficiency and other Demand 

Side Management (DSM) tools have allowed California to keep per-capita energy usage 

essentially flat for the last three decades – in spite of unprecedented economic and 

population growth.  The success of these coordinated DSM efforts has helped to avoid 

the significant expense of new power plants (and the associated grid infrastructure) and 

to mitigate the effects of climate change. 

 

 
While past successes are laudable, the goals and expectations of government, 

regulators and citizens continue to rise.  The challenge for today is to maintain this 

trajectory into the future. As a major stakeholder in California’s energy landscape, 

Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) is committed to the state’s goals for DSM and 

sustainability.  As a regulated utility in California, the CPUC expects PG&E to continue 

the development and implementation of aggressive and innovative energy-saving 

strategies. 

 

78



 

 

 

Facing Today’s Challenges 

 

PG&E has developed the Sustainable Solutions Turnkey (SST) Program to assist 

selected customers in completing comprehensive and integrated energy projects 

through a fully managed design-build implementation process.  Projects are developed 

to reduce a customer’s utility consumption (electricity, gas & water), operating costs and 

carbon footprint through an appropriate combination of efficiency, demand 

management, process improvement and on-site generation measures.  Savings 

generated from the project will be leveraged to offset project costs.   

 

Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) has a responsibility to deliver high quality 

and high availability services to its customers – and to do so in an effective and 

financially responsible manner.  The Waste Water Treatment Facility is essential to the 

District’s mission while also representing a significant portion of the District’s overall 

operating costs. Furthermore, it is understood that the facility is in need of significant 

upgrades to reduce operating costs, improve treatment performance and ensure 

resilient operations within permit requirements.    Through the SST program, the District 

has the opportunity to address all of these goals in a “streamlined” implementation 

process with minimal impact on the existing operations staff.  Additionally, the savings 

realized from facility improvements can be used to offset capital costs and to access 

non-traditional sources of project funding. 

 

The SST Program process begins with a thorough assessment of the opportunities  at 

District site(s), continues through financial analysis, project approval and design and 

culminates with construction, commissioning, training and turn-over – all delivered 

through a single contract with PG&E.  Working closely with the District, PG&E will 

provide all of the resources required to complete a successful project – including 

design, construction, project management, construction management and post-project 

warranties. 

 

79



 
 

PROGRAM OUTLINE 
The SST Program has a defined process designed to ensure a rigorous evaluation of 
customer opportunities while providing both the customer and PG&E with clear decision 
points and “off ramps” at each project milestone.  Initial assessments and project 
development are provided at no cost (NC) to the customer.  Subsequent design, 
construction, project management and post-project services will be paid by the 
customer (C) according to detailed specifications, scopes of work, schedules of values 
and firm, “not to exceed” cost proposals.  All solutions, scopes and costs will be 
developed in a collaborative process and mutually agreed to by customer and PG&E at 
each milestone before proceeding with the subsequent step.  While the customer will be 
expected to pay for services provided, SST projects are typically designed to pay for 
themselves from the cost savings generated from the implemented measures.   
 
A summary of the process is provided as follows: 
 

Project Qualification (NC):  Through a preliminary review of the customer’s 
facilities and utility expenses, PG&E will determine the availability of qualifying 
energy-related projects.  The primary focus will be on meeting USD’s bio solids 
capacity requirements including resultant biogas utilization.  Other energy 
opportunities, such as efficiency, solar etc. will also be considered.  Concurrently, 
the customer will confirm the viability of design-build construction and with the use of 
CA GC 4217 as well as a preliminary level of comfort with PG&E’s Master Services 
Agreement. 
 
Preliminary Assessment (NC):  In collaboration with USD and its consultants, 
PG&E will conduct a Preliminary Assessment to determine the viability of an SST 
project, including additional digester capacity and biogas utilization.  This work will 

Project 
Qualification

Preliminary 
Assessment

Investment 
Grade Audit

Project 
Approval

Project 
Implementation

Measurement & 
Verification

Project Planning

Sustainable 
Solutions 
Turnkey 

80



include a review of utility bills, a survey of customer facilities, systems and methods 
of operation and a preliminary financial analysis including the identification of 
available grants and incentives. The findings of the assessment will be detailed and 
presented to USD including summaries of potential projects/opportunities 
accompanied by preliminary engineering estimates for utility savings, cost savings, 
incentives, biosolids and food waste availability, biogas utilization options, 
construction costs and potential funding options. A firm proposal will also be 
provided detailing PG&E’s scope, schedule and budget for the next phase.  
 
Investment Grade Audit (C):  Candidate opportunities from the Preliminary 
Assessment that are mutually approved will be further evaluated for implementation 
in the Investment Grade Audit (IGA).  The IGA work effort will include additional site 
visits to assess equipment/systems, set data loggers and fully characterize methods 
of operation for all systems and environments.  Solutions for each measure will be 
fully developed including specifications, detailed scopes of work and ~ 30% to 50% 
design documents.  Contractor packages will be developed and a “best-value” RFP 
will be conducted with qualified installation contractors to ensure competitively 
sourced construction costs.  The findings will be provided in the IGA Report 
containing a detailed description of each opportunity, supporting documentation for 
all utility and engineering calculations and detailed financial analysis including 
savings, incentives, construction cost and models for ROI, Cash Flow, SIR and Total 
Life-Cycle Cost (TLCC).  Funding and/or financing options will be evaluated and 
presented to the customer for consideration. The IGA Report will also include a firm, 
fixed “not to exceed” proposal for implementation accompanied by detailed open-
book accounting of all costs and mark-ups, an estimated implementation schedule 
and a preliminary schedule of values. 
 
Project Implementation (C):  Design-Build construction of all work selected by the 
customer for implementation through a single contract with PG&E.  PG&E, in 
conjunction with mutually selected partners will provide all construction and related 
services to complete the project including final design, drawings and specifications, 
submittals/approval, RFIs, permitting, CEQA compliance, interconnection with the 
PG&E system, PM/CM, testing, manuals and operator training. 
 
Commissioning, Acceptance and Incentives (C):  PG&E will complete all post-
construction tasks required for project close-out and customer acceptance including 
commissioning of all equipment and/or systems, “as-built” drawings and all 
associated documentation.  PG&E will complete the measurement and verification 
(M&V) for each measure as appropriate and will complete final coordination of all 
related incentives to ensure timely payment is received from the utility. 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCING 
SST projects are developed to pay for themselves wholly or partly from the generated 
savings.  SST projects may be funded from any combination of sources, including 
customer budgets, State Revolving Fund loans and grants,  California Energy 
Commission (CEC) grants and low-interest loans, utility 0% On-Bill Financing (OBF) 

81



and/or 3rd-Party project financing.  PG&E will provide all supporting calculations, 
applications and project packages to assist the customer in coordinating and securing 
the best possible funding solution for the project, including assisting with the preparation 
of grant and/or loan applications for planning and construction and conducting 
competitive solicitations from qualified 3rd party financiers. 
 

PROJECT APPROVAL AND COMMUNICATION 
By design, the SST process supports the series of approvals that are required before 
any project can be implemented.  PG&E collaborates with the customer to develop 
strategies and materials for each stage of approval to ensure the project is thoroughly 
and accurately represented to staff, management and the Board or Council.  As 
appropriate for each customer, this work includes staff reports, supporting 
documentation, presentation materials and attendance at the associated meetings.  
Finally, a communication plan will be developed in conjunction with the customer to 
maximize the value and impact of the successful project.  
 

82



Integrated Energy Projects

Cambria CSD – Infrastructure Committee
May 30, 2018

Brent Patera
Business Development Manager
PG&E Turnkey Solutions

83



Agenda

• Energy in California

• Integrated Energy Projects

• PG&E Turnkey Energy Solutions

• Q & A

84



Impact of Energy Efficiency in CA

Ranked 49th in nation per capita energy use (2012)

Saved Californians over $65 Billion

85



What’s Next?

• Understand Customer Goals & Challenges

• Creatively Expand Offerings and Services

• “Unlock” Savings Opportunities

86



Example from the Feds

• Ever-increasing mandates and regulatory 
requirements

• Resource Constrained
– People

– Approval and “contracting vehicles”

– Funds

• “Actual” operating expenses (OPEX) exceed
appropriated funds

87



Utility Energy Services Contract (UESC)

• Prioritize efficiency, renewables & security

• Executive & statutory authority for alternate delivery

• UESC = sole-source energy projects to serving utility

• Design-build delivery funded by OPEX savings

• $100 million worth of projects with PG&E alone

88



Water-related energy use in California also consumes 

approximately 20% of the state’s electricity, and 30% of 

the state’s non-power plant natural gas (i.e. natural gas 

not used to produce electricity).

-California Energy Commission

Water + Energy Nexus89

http://www.water.ca.gov/climatechange/docs/ClimateChangeWhitePaper.pdf


• Fine balance between capital requirements vs.
cost to the ratepayer

• Projects are typically . . .
1. Planned based on available CIP from rate structure
2. Executed in “series” as funds are available

• Always more work than there is capital budget

Is there a way to do more work
without increasing rates?

Dissecting Traditional Capital Projects90



Integrated Energy Projects

• Do more work – faster and more efficiently

• Realize synergies between project “elements”

• Use energy and OPEX savings to offset cost

• Transfer cost and delivery risk to provider

• Energy savings . . .

– Improve “status” for SRF financing

– Open up additional sources of low cost funds

– Allow for more efficient contracting (CA GC 4217)

• Avg 30% of project scope is End-of-Life

91



CA Government Code 4217

Government Code  4217.10 – 4217.18

• Public “agencies”

• Project results in lower energy costs

• Governing body determines in the best 
interest of the agency

• Public hearing with two (2) weeks notice

“Provide the greatest possible flexibility to public agencies

. . . so that economic benefits may be maximized and

. . . costs may be minimized”

92



Feasibility Assessment No Cost

• Do we have the grounds for a project?

• If so, what does it look like?

• Is the project or opportunity worthy of investment?

Investment Grade Audit (IGA)

• Detailed validation of technical and financial viability

• 30 – 50% design package

• Implementation proposal with Firm-Fixed Cost

Construction

• Deliver turnkey Design-Build project

• Commissioning, acceptance, training and turn-over

Sustainable Solutions Turnkey (SST) Program93

http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.delano.k12.mn.us/images/DES/teachers/hinnenkamp/stoplight.gif&imgrefurl=http://www.delano.k12.mn.us/sitepages/pid2051.php&usg=__WEqrtxIVAdWGVrRKnYOJP4I05CI=&h=875&w=768&sz=21&hl=en&start=1&zoom=1&tbnid=Mtnr3H2xESO0lM:&tbnh=146&tbnw=128&ei=31laTuHFH6TmiALp_q3KCQ&prev=/search?q%3Dstoplight%26hl%3Den%26sa%3DN%26gbv%3D2%26tbm%3Disch&itbs=1
http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.delano.k12.mn.us/images/DES/teachers/hinnenkamp/stoplight.gif&imgrefurl=http://www.delano.k12.mn.us/sitepages/pid2051.php&usg=__WEqrtxIVAdWGVrRKnYOJP4I05CI=&h=875&w=768&sz=21&hl=en&start=1&zoom=1&tbnid=Mtnr3H2xESO0lM:&tbnh=146&tbnw=128&ei=31laTuHFH6TmiALp_q3KCQ&prev=/search?q%3Dstoplight%26hl%3Den%26sa%3DN%26gbv%3D2%26tbm%3Disch&itbs=1


$10M project @ City of SLO WRRF

• $450,000 in total annual savings
• 1,080,275 kWh

• 29,038 therms

• 16.8M lbs of CO2

• Hauling/tipping, chemicals & polymer

• ~ $300K in utility incentives

• Design-Build Delivery
135kW Bio-gas Cogen

Screwpress & RAS Pumps/VFD

Filter media, headworks & grit removal

SCADA/controls

LED lighting

94



Other Off-Site Projects

Cambria CSD95



Cambria CSD (Integrated)

Other Off-Site Projects

96



Questions?

Thank You!

97



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 4.I. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018  Subject:      CONSIDERATION TO EXTEND THE  
               AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT  
               SERVICES WITH BALANCE PUBLIC  
               RELATIONS FOR AN ADDITIONAL SIX  
               MONTHS 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board approve Amendment No. 4 to the existing Agreement for 
Consultant Services (“Agreement”) with Balance Public Relations extending the term for an 
additional six months through December 31, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The cost associated with extending the Agreement the six-month period from June 30, 2018 to 
December 31, 2018 is $7,000 per month, for a total of $42,000, plus out of pocket expenses. 
The amount will be divided equally between the Water Department, Wastewater Department 
and the Sustainable Water Facility Funds. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Agreement will expire on June 30, 2018. CCSD staff is continuing to work on multiple 
important water and wastewater capital projects, permitting and related items, as well as the 
daily operations of the CCSD. Ongoing assistance from Mr. Florez in several areas identified in 
the scope of work under the existing Agreement with Balance Public Relations continues to be 
needed as the CCSD addresses and resolves crucial water and wastewater issues, while also 
capitalizing on funding opportunities. Mr. Florez is able to assist with meetings with key 
appointed and elected State officials who play critical roles in funding and the project approval 
processes.  
 
At this time, staff is proposing a six-month extension of the Agreement, until December 31, 
2018. At that time, progress that has been made on deliverables, including the right of entry 
permit, water rights, and possible funding options with I-Bank, will be evaluated.  Mr. Florez 
has indicated that the proposed amendment is acceptable. 
 
Attachment: Amendment No. 4 to the Agreement for Consultant Services 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ FARMER___BAHRINGER ___ WHARTON ___PIERSON 
 

98



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
AMENDMENT NO. 4 

This Fourth Amendment ("Fourth Amendment") to Agreement for Consultant Services 
(“Agreement”) by and between the CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
(“CCSD”) and BALANCE PUBLIC RELATIONS, a California corporation (“Consultant”) 
is made and entered into this 28th day of June, 2018.  

WHEREAS, the parties entered into an Agreement dated May 1, 2015 where Consultant 
provided strategic planning and consulting services to the CCSD, and  

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2015, the parties amended the Agreement to extend the term 
through June 30, 2016; and  

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2016, the parties amended the Agreement again to extend the 
term through June 30, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2017, the parties amended the Agreement again to extend the 
term through June 30, 2018, and to modify the scope of services and reduce the monthly 
retainer amount as set forth in the Third Amendment to Agreement for Consultant 
Services; and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to further extend the term of the Agreement for an 
additional six months. 

NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:  

1. Section 1 of the Agreement ("TERM"), shall be amended in its entirety to read as 
follows:  

This Agreement shall commence on May 1, 2015 and shall remain and 
continue in effect until December 31, 2018, unless sooner terminated 
pursuant to the provisions hereof. 

2. Except as modified herein and in the June 27, 2017 Amendment 3, all other 

terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement, shall remain unchanged.  

 

[Signatures on following page.] 

 

 

 

99



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, DISTRICT and CONSULTANT have executed this Fourth 
Amendment the day and year first above written.  

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT 

CONSULTANT 

 
 
      
Jerry Gruber, General Manager 

 
 
      
Dean Florez, President and CEO 

 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Monique Madrid, District Clerk 
 

 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
      
Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel  
 

 

 

  

100



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 5.A.  
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Rudy Hernandez, Finance Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018 Subject: PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND   
       CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 13- 
                 2018 CONFIRMING 2017 FIRE HAZARD FUEL 
       REDUCTION ITEMIZED REPORT OF THE  
       CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

1. Conduct a public hearing to consider the report on costs incurred for the 2017 Fire 
Hazard Fuel Reduction Program on parcels subject to clearing under the CCSD’s Fire 
Hazard Fuel Reduction contract: 

a. Open public hearing. 

b. Receive public testimony and consider any objections from affected property 
owners. 

c. Close public hearing and make any modifications to the report deemed necessary. 

2. Adopt Resolution 13-2018 confirming the 2017 Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Cost Report. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The CCSD’s contractor’s cost for performing all the work on the parcels is $19,237. This amount 
includes CCSD’s administrative charges. The sixty (60) outstanding parcels invoiced and listed 
in the cost report included in Resolution 13-2018 will be assessed on the SLO County 2018-
2019 Tax Roll in the amount of $19,237. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
This agenda item is for a public hearing that is being held in accordance with Health and Safety 
Code Section 14910 to consider the cost report and hear any objections to the costs incurred by 
the CCSD to abate weeds and fire hazards as part of the CCSD’s 2017 Fire Hazard Fuel 
Reduction Program. At the hearing, the Board may modify the amounts as it deems necessary 
and adopt the attached Resolution to confirm the cost report. After the cost report has been 
confirmed, the Resolution will be submitted to the County and the amounts will be included and 
collected on each respective property owner’s property tax bill, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Health and Safety Code. Pursuant to the requirements of Health and Safety 
Code Section 14906, a copy of the cost report has been posted on the District Board’s chamber 
doors for three (3) days with a notice of the time and date when the cost report will be 
considered by the Board for confirmation. 
 
The cost report provides a specific cost for each property owner subject to the charges. The 
charges reflect the actual contract price to remove or reduce the downed fuels and vegetation 

101



on the property, plus the CCSD’s administrative charge of $200 for the inspection, follow-up 
work, and managerial and administrative work performed by CCSD staff to submit the charges 
with the parcel data to the San Luis Obispo County Tax Collector for CCSD reimbursement. The 
CCSD invoices affected property owners in-house and reduces the administrative fee by $100 
for property owners who pay their bill within 90 days of being invoiced by the CCSD. The 
properties listed in the cost report are those whose invoices remain outstanding. 
 
Invoices were mailed to parcel owners on September 18, 2017. The District’s general practice is 
to mail out additional courtesy notices in December to parcel owners who have not paid their 
invoices; however, due to the transitional period in changing Finance Managers, the courtesy 
notices did not go out last year. As a result, the $100 administrative fee reduction is being 
applied to all parcels this year. This does not affect confirmation of the itemized list as 
recommended by staff. 
 
It should be noted that new procedures and timing related to the collection of charges incurred 
by the CCSD in clearing parcels were approved by the Board May 26, 2011. The timing 
requirements imposed by San Luis Obispo County for inclusion of assessments on the tax roll 
do not fit well with the growing season for weeds in Cambria. In fact, in 2018, the County’s 
deadline for submittal of assessments is July 16. Even the previous August 10 deadline did not 
fit well with the growing season, and a deadline of July 16 is impractical and ineffective for the 
growing season for weeds in Cambria. Based upon this change in timing, the process of 
confirming the costs of abatement for collection on the tax roll has been moved to the following 
year, and accordingly the itemized cost report for 2017 is now being presented to the Board for 
confirmation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: Resolution 13-2018 
  Exhibit A to Resolution 13-2018 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE___ BAHRINGER ___ FARMER ___ WHARTON ___ PIERSON ____ 

102



 
 

RESOLUTION 13-2018 
June 28, 2018 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
CONFIRMING FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION ITEMIZED REPORT  

 
WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 17-2017, the Fire Chief was directed to abate a public 
nuisance on certain parcels of real property located within the Cambria Community 
Services District; and 
  
WHEREAS, said nuisance, consisting of noxious or dangerous weeds, live or dead 
vegetation located upon said parcels, has been abated under the power granted to the 
Cambria Community Services District by Health and Safety Code Sections 14875, et 
seq., and Government Code Section 61100(t), whereby the Cambria Community 
Services District may declare certain vegetation a public nuisance for abating said 
vegetation to reduce the community wildland fire vulnerability and threat; and 
 
WHEREAS, parcels in which the nuisance fire hazard vegetation was not removed by 
the owners have been cleared and abated by the Cambria Community Services District 
Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Contractor, as approved by the Board of Directors in 
Resolution No. 17-2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, an itemized report has been prepared showing the actual cost of said Fire 
Hazard Fuel Reduction to be charged to each parcel, which report is attached hereto, 
marked “Exhibit A,” and incorporated herein by reference as though here fully set forth. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of Directors of 
the Cambria Community Services District, as follows: 
 

1. That the recitals set forth hereinabove are true, correct and valid. 
 

2. That said itemized cost report entitled “Cambria Community Services District, 
Report of Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction 2017,” a copy of which is on file in the 
office of the Cambria Community Services District and is available there for 
public inspection, be and hereby is ordered confirmed in the form set forth in said 
“Exhibit A.” 

 
3. That in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 14915, the Finance 

Manager shall forthwith transmit a copy of this Resolution to the County Auditor. 
 

4. That pursuant to the authority in Health and Safety Code Sections 14912, 14916 
and 14917, the County Auditor and the County Tax Collector be and hereby are 
authorized and directed to do all acts necessary and proper to place on the  

103



2018-2019 Tax Rolls, the respective assessments as set forth in said confirmed 
itemized cost report, plus such administrative fees as are allowed under the law. 

 
5. That because of said confirmation and recording of said itemized cost report, 

pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 14912, the amounts of the Fire 
Hazard Fuel Reduction costs set forth in said itemized cost report are thereby 
made special assessments and liens against the respective parcels of real 
property in the Cambria Community Services District, all as set forth in said 
itemized report referred to hereinabove as “Exhibit A.” 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 28TH day of June, 2018. 
 
AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
            
      Amanda Rice, President  

Board of Directors 
 

 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Monique Madrid, District Clerk  Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 
 
 
 

 
 

104



Parcel
Contractor 

Cost
Administrative 

Fee
Total Cost

013.371.021 300.00$      100.00$               400.00$        
022.071.067 376.00$      100.00$               476.00$        
022.093.019 576.00$      100.00$               676.00$        
022.093.027 252.00$      100.00$               352.00$        
022.151.058 107.00$      100.00$               207.00$        
022.181.038 295.00$      100.00$               395.00$        
023.025.019 406.00$      100.00$               506.00$        
023.048.027 227.00$      100.00$               327.00$        
023.093.013 125.00$      100.00$               225.00$        
023.113.031 62.00$        100.00$               162.00$        
023.116.019 89.00$        100.00$               189.00$        
023.116.020 80.00$        100.00$               180.00$        
023.118.006 207.00$      100.00$               307.00$        
023.119.024 139.00$      100.00$               239.00$        
023.141.042 374.00$      100.00$               474.00$        
023.204.012 103.00$      100.00$               203.00$        
023.204.022 103.00$      100.00$               203.00$        
023.213.038 98.00$        100.00$               198.00$        
023.213.040 98.00$        100.00$               198.00$        
023.223.013 243.00$      100.00$               343.00$        
023.233.058 316.00$      100.00$               416.00$        
023.233.068 413.00$      100.00$               513.00$        
023.272.015 71.00$        100.00$               171.00$        
023.281.013 62.00$        100.00$               162.00$        
023.312.021 259.00$      100.00$               359.00$        
023.331.001 71.00$        100.00$               171.00$        
023.341.029 80.00$        100.00$               180.00$        
023.352.034 275.00$      100.00$               375.00$        
023.353.003 62.00$        100.00$               162.00$        
023.353.004 78.00$        100.00$               178.00$        
023.391.048 53.00$        100.00$               153.00$        
023.423.006 89.00$        100.00$               189.00$        
023.453.004 325.00$      100.00$               425.00$        
024.011.035 277.00$      100.00$               377.00$        
024.011.044 332.00$      100.00$               432.00$        
024.021.030 71.00$        100.00$               171.00$        
024.081.051 260.00$      100.00$               360.00$        
024.123.036 80.00$        100.00$               180.00$        
024.132.031 53.00$        100.00$               153.00$        
024.143.021 474.00$      100.00$               574.00$        

EXHIBIT "A" TO RESOLUTION 13-2018                                                 
REPORT OF FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION 2017

105



Parcel
Contractor 

Cost
Administrative 

Fee
Total Cost

EXHIBIT "A" TO RESOLUTION 13-2018                                                 
REPORT OF FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION 2017

024.161.011 304.00$      100.00$               404.00$        
024.181.001 268.00$      100.00$               368.00$        
024.182.035 182.00$      100.00$               282.00$        
024.191.013 405.00$      100.00$               505.00$        
024.201.005 327.00$      100.00$               427.00$        
024.201.020 351.00$      100.00$               451.00$        
024.211.024 215.00$      100.00$               315.00$        
024.241.019 71.00$        100.00$               171.00$        
024.252.004 80.00$        100.00$               180.00$        
024.273.017 241.00$      100.00$               341.00$        
024.273.019 103.00$      100.00$               203.00$        
024.342.017 232.00$      100.00$               332.00$        
024.353.014 71.00$        100.00$               171.00$        
024.353.031 71.00$        100.00$               171.00$        
024.354.020 221.00$      100.00$               321.00$        
024.372.008 89.00$        100.00$               189.00$        
024.383.014 277.00$      100.00$               377.00$        
024.191.063 645.00$      100.00$               745.00$        
024.191.062 848.00$      100.00$               948.00$        
024.081.053 275.00$      100.00$               375.00$        

TOTAL ACCOUNTS: 60 19,237.00$  

106



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 5.B. 

 
FROM:  Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Rudy Hernandez, Finance Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Meeting Date:   June 28, 2018 Subject: PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND  
   CONSIDER RESOLUTION 12-2018 APPROVING 
   A FIRE SUPPRESSION BENEFIT ASSESSMENT 
   CONSUMER PRICE INDEX (CPI) ADJUSTMENT  
   AT THE RATE OF 4.0% FOR FY 2018/2019 AND 
   CONFIRMING THE ITEMIZED REPORT TO 
   COLLECT THE ASSESSMENT ON THE COUNTY 
   TAX ROLLS      
    

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
1. Receive staff report. 
2. Open public hearing. 
3. Receive public comment. 
4. Close public hearing. 
5. Adopt Resolution 12-2018 approving a 4.0% CPI adjustment in the existing Fire 

Suppression Benefit Assessment rates, effective July 1, 2018, in compliance with Resolution 
27-2003 and the related Engineer’s Report, and confirming the itemized report to collect the 
assessment on the County tax rolls. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Adoption of the Resolution increases the annual fire suppression benefit assessment revenue by 
approximately $18,061 for a projected total of $469,595 for FY 2018/2019. The Fire Suppression 
Benefit Assessment provides critical supplemental funding for Fire Department operations. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
CCSD Resolution 27-2003 confirmed the special benefit assessment for fire suppression services. 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 50078 et seq., the assessment may be increased for the 
ensuing year based upon the Consumer Price Index for the Los Angeles/Long Beach/Anaheim area, 
not to exceed 5.4%. The United States’ Bureau of Labor Statistics recorded a 4.0% increase for the Los 
Angeles/Long Beach/Anaheim area for the twelve-month period ending April 30, 2018. 
 
The proposed range of assessments compared with the existing rates is as follows: 

 FY 2018-2019 FY2017-2018 

Vacant Lot $19.33 $18.59 

Single Family Residence < 3600 square feet $96.66 $92.94 

Single Family Residence > 3600 square feet $145.02 $139.44 

Multi-Family Residence per Dwelling Unit $48.34 $46.48 

   

Commercial Range:   

Minimum of Commercial Range $290.01 $278.86 

Maximum of Commercial Range $2,466.80 $2,371.92 
 
Attachments:  Resolution 12-2018 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER___ FARMER ___ WHARTON___ PIERSON____ 

107



RESOLUTION NO. 12-2018 
June 28, 2018 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
APPROVING THE FIRE SUPPRESSION BENEFIT ASSESSMENT CONSUMER 

PRICE INDEX ADJUSTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
 4.0% FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019  

AND AUTHORIZING COLLECTION ON THE TAX ROLLS 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the authority in Government Code Section 61122, a 
community services district may levy benefit assessments consistent with the 
requirements of Article XIIID of the California Constitution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment was approved by a majority of the 
property owners in Cambria in March 2003 pursuant to Government Code Section 50075 
et seq.; and  
 
WHEREAS, Government Code Section 50078.16 states that the Board of Directors may 
provide for the collection of the assessment in the same manner, and subject to the same 
penalties as, other fees, charges, and taxes fixed and collected by, or on behalf of the 
District and further provides that the County may deduct its reasonable costs incurred for 
that service before remittal of the balance to the District. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria 
Community Services District as follows: 
 

1. Approves a Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment Consumer Price Index 
Adjustment in the amount of 4.0%, effective July 1, 2018, in compliance with 
Resolution 27-2003 and the related Engineer’s Report. 
 

2. Thus, approves the following assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/2019: 
 

       FY 2018/2019 
Vacant Lot $19.33 
Single Family Residence < 3600 sq. ft. $96.66 
Single Family Residence > 3600 sq. ft.     $145.02 
Multi-Family Residence per Dwelling Unit $48.34 
Commercial Range $290.01 – 2,466.80 

       
3. For the 2018-2019 fiscal year, pursuant to the authority in Government Code 

Section 50078.16, the Board of Directors hereby elects to collect the District’s 
Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment on the County tax roll, in the same 
manner, by the same person, and at the same time, together with and not 
separate from its taxes. 

 
 

108



 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 28TH day of June 2018. 
 
  

 
      
Amanda Rice, President  
Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Monique Madrid, District Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 
 

 
 
 

109



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 5.C. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Monique Madrid, District Clerk  
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018  Subject: PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER  
        ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 14-2018 
        CONFIRMING THE ITEMIZED   
        REPORT TO COLLECT DELINQUENT 
        SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND  
        DISPOSAL CHARGES ON THE   
        COUNTY TAX ROLLS  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
1. Receive staff report and review the itemized report for delinquent solid waste collection 

and disposal charges. 
2. Open Public Hearing. 
3. Take Public Testimony. 
4. Close Public Hearing. 
5. Discussion. 
6. Adopt Resolution 14-2018 confirming the itemized report (Exhibit “A” to the Resolution) 

describing each parcel and the amount of delinquent solid waste collection and disposal 
charges to be collected against each parcel. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The property owner of record is responsible for payment of delinquent charges. Collecting 
delinquent charges on the tax roll ensures the CCSD’s Franchisee, Mission Country Disposal, 
will receive payment for solid waste collection and disposal services from owners who have not 
paid their bill. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
On October 1, 2009, the CCSD Board of Directors adopted Ordinance 02-2009 electing to have 
delinquent solid waste collection and disposal service charges collected on the County tax roll 
in accordance with the provisions of Health and Safety Code Section 5473.1 et seq. 
 
The CCSD Board of Directors found that the timely and full payment of charges for solid waste 
collection and disposal services is critical for the successful operation of the CCSD’s solid waste 
collection and disposal Franchise and elected to, by resolution, have solid waste collection and 
disposal charges which are delinquent at the end of any fiscal year collected on the tax roll. 
 
Mission Country Disposal has requested and filed an itemized report with the CCSD listing all 
delinquent solid waste collection and disposal charges for collection on the 2018/2019 tax roll. 
Outstanding charges total approximately $1,020.08. 
 

110



The Board is required to hold a public hearing at which it is to consider all objections and protests 
to the itemized report. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 5473.3, at the conclusion of 
the hearing the Board may adopt, revise, change, reduce or modify any charge or overrule any 
or all objections. The attached Resolution has been prepared for Board consideration to approve 
and adopt the report. Thereafter it will be filed with the County Auditor-Controller and the 
amounts of the delinquent charges will be entered as charges against the parcels and collected 
on the annual bills for taxes levied against the respective parcels. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 14-2018 
  Exhibit A to Resolution 14-2018 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    

 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___BAHRINGER ___ FARMER ___ WHARTON ___ PIERSON_____ 

111



 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-2018 

JUNE 28, 2018 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

CONFIRMING THE ITEMIZED REPORT AND AUTHORIZING 
DELINQUENT SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL SERVICE 

CHARGES TO BE COLLECTED ON TAX ROLL 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Cambria Community Services 
District (“District”) makes the following findings of fact: 
 
 1. On October 1, 2009, the District Board duly adopted Ordinance No.  
02-2009 pursuant to which the District elected to have delinquent solid waste collection 
and disposal service charges collected on the tax roll in the same manner, by the same 
persons, and at the same time as its general taxes, all pursuant to applicable 
Government and Health and Safety Codes; and  
 
 2. In accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 5473.1, the District 
Clerk has mailed letters to owners of real property notifying them of the District’s intent 
to have such solid waste collection and disposal service charges delinquent as of May 
15, 2017, placed on the 2017-2018 County tax roll for collection, pursuant to Health and 
Safety Code Sections 5473 and 5473a by filing a written report with the Auditor-
Controller’s office of the County of San Luis Obispo, containing a description of each 
parcel of real property with delinquent solid waste collection and disposal service 
charges, the amount of those delinquent charges, and the owner thereof; and 
 
 3. In accordance with the requirements of Health and Safety Code Section 
5473.1, the District Clerk has caused a notice to be published of the time and place of 
the public hearing to be held before the District Board at which time all interested 
persons will be given the opportunity to present oral or written testimony for or against 
said report or any portions thereof; and  
 
 4. On or before July 21, 2018, the final filing date established by the County 
Auditor-Controller’s Office, the Finance Manager must submit all changes, additions and 
deletions to such list on a final filing basis; and 
 
 5. In accordance with San Luis Obispo County regulations, as of July 1, 2008 
a fee of $36.00 will be charged for each assessment removed or revised from the 
assessment listing occurring on a tax bill after extension. Thus, any charge levied 
against the District for change(s) in an assessment amount of a property owner that is 
not the result of District error will be subsequently invoiced and collected by the District 
from the property owner of record. 
 

112



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Cambria 
Community Services District as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The above findings are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby confirms the itemized report describing the delinquent 
solid waste collection and disposal service charges attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
hereby authorizes such charges to be collected on the County real property tax roll, 
pursuant to the procedures set forth in Health and Safety Code Section 5473 et seq. 
 
Ayes: 
Nays: 
Absent: 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June, 2018. 

 

              
       Amanda Rice Board President 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

              
Monique Madrid, District Clerk   Timothy Carmel, District Counsel 

 

 

113



114



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.A. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Rudy Hernandez, Finance Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018  Subject: RECEIVE AND FILE THE    
        INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
        FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends the Board receive and file the attached Independent Auditor’s Report and 
Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2017 presented by David Brunner, CPA, 
Accountancy Corporation.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
An invoice for $8,250 will be submitted to the District by David Brunner, CPA, as provided for in 
the CCSD’s contract for audit services. The amount budgeted for the audit services is $9,250; 
Mr. Brunner applied a $1,000 discount for issuing the audit report late.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
A draft of the Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 
30, 2017 (the “Audit Report”) is attached for review. Mr. Brunner will present a summary of the 
Audit Report and respond to questions and comments from the Board.  
 
The Audit Report contains the auditor’s opinion of the CCSD’s financial statements and 
adequacy of internal controls. The auditor issued an unqualified opinion, which states that as of 
June 30, 2017, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the governmental and business-type activities of the CCSD. 
 
The CCSD implemented the requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement (GASB) No. 34 as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. A component of GASB 34 
is a Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), which is incorporated in the audit. It is not 
a required component of the financial statements, but becomes supplemental information 
required by GASB. While the auditor is not responsible for the MD&A, he does apply certain 
limited procedures to it. 
 
As shown on page 8 of the Audit Report, the General Fund had revenues of $5,029,671 and 
expenditures of $4,947,883, resulting in an increase to the Fund balance of $81,788. 
 
As shown on page 12 of the Audit Report, the Water Fund had total operating and non-operating 
revenues of $3,390,423 and expenditures of $3,219,506, resulting in an increase in net assets 
of $170,917. It should be noted that these Water Fund revenues/expenses include both Water 
Operating and Water SWF funds. 

115



As shown on page 12 of the Audit Report, the Wastewater Fund had total operating and non-
operating revenues of $1,984,174 and expenditures of $2,809,547, resulting in a decrease in 
net assets of $(825,373). 
 
As shown on pages 2 and 11 of the Audit Report, the District had a total of $3,381,534 in cash 
on hand on June 30, 2017. That cash is distributed to the three funds as shown below: 
 

CCSD FINANCIAL AUDIT 
JUNE 30, 2017 

FUND CASH BALANCE 

GENERAL FUND $3,756,351 

WASTEWATER FUND ($584,228) 

WATER FUND $209,411 

TOTAL $3,381,534 

  
  

Inter-Fund Loans due to the General Fund on June 30, 2017 are shown below: 
 

WASTEWATER FUND $466,767 

WATER FUND $157,726 

  
TOTAL DUE TO  
GENERAL FUND $624,493 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 

30, 2017  
   
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER ___ FARMER ___ WHARTON ___ PIERSON____  

116



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CAMBRIA 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
and 

Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended 
June 30, 2017 

 
 
  

117



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

118



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 Page 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report ................................................................................................................... i-ii 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis ................................................................................................ iii-xii 
 
Board of Directors and Administration ..................................................................................................... xiii 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 

Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position ..................................................................................................................... 2 

Statement of Activities ...................................................................................................................... 3-4 
 

Basic Financial Statements: 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Governmental Funds: 

Balance Sheet and Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the 
Statement of Net Position .......................................................................................................... 6-7 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and Reconciliation of 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Government 
Funds to the Statement of Activities .......................................................................................... 8-9 

 
Proprietary Funds: 

Statement of Net Position................................................................................................................11 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ....................................................12 

Statement of Cash Flows ..................................................................................................................13 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements................................................................................................. 15-35 
 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards ........................................................................................................................ 36-37 

 
Required Supplemental Information (Unaudited): 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual – Governmental Funds ...................................................................................39 

 
Other Required Supplemental Information (Unaudited): 

Other Required Supplemental Information .....................................................................................41 

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ...................................42 

Schedule of the District’s Pension Plan Contributions .....................................................................43 

119



 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To Management of 
Cambria Community Services District 
Cambria, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

I have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Cambria Community Services 
District (CCSD), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the CCSD’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.  I conducted 
my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, I express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 

120



Opinion 

In my opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Cambria Community Services District as of June 30, 2017, and the 
changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 

Implementation of New Accounting Standards 

As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB 
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, during the fiscal year 2015. 
 
Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages I through xii, the Budgetary Comparison information on page 29, and the 
Schedule of Funding Progress, Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, 
and Schedule of Contributions, listed on pages 31 through 33, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context.  I have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements.  I do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express and opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
 
 
 
 
David D. Bruner, CPA 
Merced, California 
June 11, 2018 
 

121



 
Our discussion and analysis of the Cambria Community Services District’s (CCSD) financial performance 
provides an overview of the CCSD’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  The 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis is to be read in conjunction with the CCSD’s financial statements, 
which follow this section. 
 
The Cambria Community Services District is a multi-purpose special district formed on December 9, 1976.  
Formation took place under the Community Services District Law, Section 61000, et. seq. of the California 
Government Code.  At the time of formation it absorbed and combined the responsibilities of five existing 
special districts.  These independently operated districts were as follows: 

• The Cambria Community Services District – Moonstone Beach Drive area 
• The Cambria County Water District 
• The Cambria Fire Protection District 
• The Cambria Garbage Disposal District 
• San Luis Obispo County Service Area No. 6 – Street Lighting Service 

 
The CCSD is a political subdivision of the State of California and operates under a Board of Directors-
Manager form of government.  A five-member Board of Directors governs it with each member serving a 
four-year term.  The CCSD has a population of 6,400 residents within its boundaries.  Tourism in the 
summer months and on holiday weekends creates seasonal increases in the population.  The CCSD 
provides the following services: 

• Water 
• Wastewater 
• Fire Protection 
• Facilities and Resources 
• Parks and Recreation 
• Resource Conservation 
• Administration 

 
Fund Financial Statements 

The accounting system of the CCSD is organized and operated on a fund basis.  A fund is considered a 
separate self-balancing entity with assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. 
 
The basis of accounting depends on the fund.  Basis of accounting refers to “when” revenues and expenses 
are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. 
 
Governmental funds use the modified-accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when 
measurable and available as net current assets.  Measurable means the amounts can be estimated or 
determined.  Available means the amounts were collected during the reporting period or soon enough to 
finance the expenditures accrued for the reporting period. 
 
Enterprise or business-like funds use the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities are recognized when the event happens  

122



 
Financial Statements 

There are two government-wide financial statements that include all of the CCSD’s funds.  These are: 

• Statement of Net Position 
• Statement of Activities 

 
The Statement of Net Position was previously the Statement of Net Assets and includes all of the CCSD’s 
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets.  (The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) sets the standards for government entities’ financial statement 
reporting.  As stated in Note 6: Statement of Net Position, the CCSD adopted GASB 63 and GASB 65 as of 
June 30, 2013.  One effect of adopting the new standards was to change the Statement of Net Assets to 
the Statement of Net Position. 
 
The Net Position may be displayed in the following categories: 

• Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
• Restricted 
• Unrestricted 

 
The Statement of Net Position provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital 
structure of the CCSD and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the CCSD. 
 
The Statement of Activities includes all of the CCSD’s individual functions presented using the accrual basis 
of accounting.  One objective of the Statement of Activities is to report the relative financial burden of 
each of the CCSD’s functions. 
 
The remainder of the CCSD’s financial statements is grouped into 2 categories: 

• Governmental Activities 
• Business-Type Activities 

 
Governmental Activities 

Governmental activities include the following fund: 

• General Fund 
 
The General Fund includes the following Departments: 

• Fire Department 
• Administration 
• Facilities and Resources 
• Parks and Recreation 

 
  

123



 
The CCSD’s financial statements for governmental activities include six components: 

• Balance Sheet 
 

• Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
 

• Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of 
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

 
• Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
• Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Governmental Funds (Shown as Other Required Supplemental Information) 
 
The Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds first presents the CCSD’s assets (resources it controls that enable 
it to provide services), liabilities (financial obligations) and fund balance (in essence, what would be left 
over if the assets were used to satisfy the liabilities).  The assets and liabilities are current in nature.  
Notably absent are capital assets.  This due to the statement being presented using the modified accrual 
basis of accounting.  Fund balance is the difference between assets and liabilities.  Fund balance is 
reported in up to five classifications to clarify Fund Balance reported as well as to provide additional 
information as follows: 

• Nonspendable – amounts that are not in a spendable form, such as Prepaid Expenses or Deposits. 
 

• Restricted – amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers through constitutional 
provisions or legislation. 

 
• Committed – amounts constrained to specific purposes by the government itself using its highest 

level of decision-making authority. 
 

• Assigned – amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose. 
 

• Unassigned – amounts that are available for any purpose.  These amounts are only found in the 
general fund. 

 
The Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position is the final 
component of the Balance Sheet.  The reconciling items explain the differences in the accounting bases 
(the presence of capital assets and long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements, but 
their absence in the governmental funds). 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances is the governmental funds’ 
income statement, tracking the flow of resources in as Revenues and out as Expenditures.  Revenues and 
Expenditures are not the only resources that flow in and out.  Other financing sources (uses) identify 
transfers in and out of the governmental funds.  Besides the fact that transfers are neither revenues nor 
expenditures, they are shown separately to assist the statement reader in assessing the balance between 
ongoing revenues and expenditures related to the basic operations of the CCSD.  For this same reason, 
special items such as prior period adjustments (corrections of material errors related to a prior period or 
periods) are shown separately. 
 
The Reconciliation of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to 
the Statement of Activities describes the differences between change in fund balance and change in 
governmental activities net position in the government-wide statement of activities.  Items are 
individually described.  

124



 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are disclosures presented to assist the reader in understanding the 
information found in the financial statements. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 
Governmental Funds compares the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts. 
 
Business-Type Activities 

Business-type activities include the following funds: 

• Water Fund 
• Wastewater (Sewer) Fund 

 
The Water Fund includes the following departments: 

• Water 
• Resource Conservation 
• Surface Water Facility Operations 

 
The CCSD’s financial statements for business-type activities include four components: 

• Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds 
• Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position – Proprietary Funds 
• Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds 
• Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the proprietary funds’ assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets.  Net position may be displayed in the following 
categories: 

• Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
• Restricted 
• Unrestricted 

 
The Statement of Net Position provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital 
structure of the Water and Wastewater Funds and assessing their liquidity and financial flexibility. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position presents information which shows 
how the Water and Wastewater Fund’s net assets changed during the year.  All of the current year’s 
revenues and expenditures are recorded when the underlying transaction occurs, regardless of the timing 
of the related cash flows.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
measures the success of the CCSD’s operations over the past year and determines whether the CCSD has 
recovered its costs through user fees, property taxes and other changes. 
  

125



 
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information regarding the Water and Wastewater Fund’s cash 
receipts and cash disbursements during the fiscal year.  The statement reports cash activity in three 
categories: 

• Operating Activities 
• Capital and Related Financing Activities 
• Investing and Non-Operating Activities 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are disclosures presented to assist the reader in understanding the 
information found in the financial statements. 
 
NOTE 1 is required in all financial statements, even in cases where only the minimum notes are given.  It 
provides a brief description of the CCSD; which financial statements are provided; how activity is 
recorded/reported; the accounting basis on which the financial statements are presented; certain 
financial policies of the CCSD, such as its capitalization policy and some definition of terms. 
 
NOTE 2 provides information related to the CCSD’s cash and investments such as how much cash is on-
hand, how much is in the CCSD’s bank accounts and how much is held in the Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF).  LAIF is a voluntary program offered to California’s local governments to allow them to 
participate in a major portfolio.  It is administered by the California State Treasurer.  It has the same 
objectives in its investment policy as does the CCSD (Safety, Liquidity and Yield, in that order).  LAIF does 
not invest in securities or derivatives and no agency has ever lost funds invested in LAIF.  It is not subject 
to seizure by the State of California.  On June 30, 2017, the fair market value of LAIF’s investments was 
slightly in excess of the cost plus accrued interest of those assets.  50% of LAIF’s funds were invested in 
United States Treasury Bills/Notes. 
 
NOTE 3 provides additional information on the CCSD’s Property, Plant and Equipment (Fixed Assets).  This 
is mainly in the form of showing the amounts added and deleted for a given fiscal year by type of asset. 
 
NOTE 4 provides additional information on the CCSD’s accrued liabilities. 
 
NOTE 5 provides additional information on the CCSD’s Long-Term Debt such as original balances, interest 
rates and annual amounts due through the end of the terms of the debt. 
 
NOTE 6 has been expanded to include all of the pension disclosures required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements 43, 45 and 68. 
 
While the note is titled Defined Benefit Pension Plan, it also includes the Post-Employment Benefits 
(OPEB) offered to the District’s retirees in the form of healthcare benefits.  The amount shown is based 
on an actuarial prepared “in-house” as of June 30, 2015.  The District is required to do an actuarial 
calculation every third year and the next one will be done for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.  The 
actuarial is based on the number of employees, retirees and their spouses as well as their ages (and  
presumed life spans) and presumed retirement dates as of June 30, 2014.  The estimated costs are 
projected forward through the year 2057.  The CCSD currently operates on a “pay as you go” basis for 
OPEB.  Current retiree costs are fully paid, but nothing is specifically set aside for future benefits. 
  

126



 
NOTE 7 provides information related to agreements with other government entities for mutual aid and 
the use of property. 
 
Required Supplemental Information 

This section contains the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget 
and Actual – Governmental Fund. 
 
Other Required Supplemental Information 

This section contains the Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Post Employment Benefits.  It also 
contains two new schedules, the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
and the Schedule of Contributors, both required by GASB 68 for the District’s Net Pension Liability. 
 
Because the Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment is a parcel assessment, it is not impacted by property 
value fluctuations.  If approved by the CCSD Board of Directors, it can increase by the annual increase in 
the consumer price index, up to a maximum of 5.4%.  It increased by $8,294 (2.0%) from fiscal year 2015-
2016 to fiscal year 2016-2017.  It represents 21% of the Fire Department’s revenue in the CCSD’s fiscal 
year 2016-2017 Budget. 
 
The economic situation also may have been impacting utility sales for the last several years, although this 
is not as readily discernable as with property tax revenue.  Water and sewer sales decreased at the start 
of the economic downturn in fiscal year 2007-2008, staying depressed until the 2011-2012 fiscal year at 
which time they rebounded significantly, although they remained slightly below their highest level, which 
occurred in fiscal year 2006-2007. 
 
Environmental factors also substantially impacted utility sales beginning in fiscal year 2014-2015.  Because 
of persistent drought conditions in California and a predicted shortage of water availability, in January 
2014 the District declared a Stage 3 Water Emergency and implemented a Stage 3 Water Conservation 
plan in the District which included the imposition of water use restrictions.  It was anticipated that the 
restrictions would result in a 20% reduction in water use in the community.  The actual reduction in water 
use was almost 40% for the last four months of the fiscal year 2013-2014 and in all of fiscal year 2014-
2015.  In 2016-2017, water sales increase slightly but were still only 62% of sales in fiscal year 2012-2013.  
The impact of reduced water consumption since fiscal year 2015-2016 has been slightly offset by a water 
and wastewater rate increase implemented on March 1, 2016.  The combined effect of reduced water 
consumption and increased rates resulted in a decrease in water sales for fiscal year 2016-2017 of 37% 
compared to fiscal year 2012-2013. 
 
Also in January 2014, the District began planning and developing an emergency water supply project that 
would preclude future similar water shortages.  The project selected is comprised of a brackish water 
desalination plant and related equipment capable of converting available brackish water into reusable 
water which is diverted back into the ground for use as potable water.  The system is expected to eliminate 
the need for any future water emergency condition in the District. 
  

127



 
In anticipation of this project, the District also authorized a “Water and Sewer Plan Rate Study” to evaluate 
the existing rate structure in the District and develop a proposed rate structure that would promote water 
conservation and fund construction of the emergency water supply project.  In July 2014, the District 
adopted a special surcharge to water rates that generated $972,803 during fiscal year 2016-2017 in 
additional revenue to fund the emergency water supply project. 
 
Once the increased water rates were approved, the District borrowed $8,939,000 in a private placement 
loan from Western Alliance Bank Corporation in August 2014 to help pay for the Emergency Water Supply 
Project.  CCSD also received $4,163,142 from a Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water Management 
Grant as part of San Luis Obispo County’s DWR submittal to help finance the same project.  The grant 
funds were received on December 17, 2015. 
 
Two significant factors other than the general economic situation and the current drought, impact the 
financial strength of the CCSD.  They are: 

• Minimal capacity fee revenue; and 
• Stagnate customer base 

 
These conditions present significant fiscal challenges to the CCSD.  Having only minimal capital revenue 
has resulted in most enterprise funds’ capital outlays being financed by operating revenue or by transfers 
from the General Fund after fiscal year 2005-2006.  A stagnate customer base results in little or no growth 
in revenue as well as in lost economies of scale. 
 
To meet these challenges, the CCSD increase water fees by 9.75% and sewer fees by 15% as of July 1, 2009 
and reduced staffing and employee benefits costs as well as reducing other operating costs.  On March 1, 
2016, water and sewer fees were again increased by an average of 24%.  On March 1, 2016, increases of 
4% in water and sewer rates were also approved for March 1st of 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020. 
 
While a hiring freeze imposed by the Board of Directors in 2009 has since been reversed, the following 
staff positions have been eliminated: Assistant General Manager, Assistant Fire Chief, Assistant Finance 
Manager, Administrative Technician (Fire Department) and an Administrative Technician (Finance).  
Reduced retirement formulas have been adopted for new employees and all newly hired employees 
contribute the full employee portion to their pensions.  For existing employees, all employee groups are 
now paying the full employee portion to their pensions.  Greater cost-sharing for medical insurance is also 
being paid by management/confidential employees and SEIU employees. 

128



 
The following table shows the year to year increases and decreases in total salaries and wages: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Retirement is the most expensive employee benefit of the CCSD.  The annual pension cost decreased from 
$647,662 in fiscal year 2008-2009 to $646,889 in fiscal year 2016-2017.  There are various factors that will 
impact the retirement rates and cost in the future.  While such factors as total salaries, inflation rates and 
returns on investment are always involved and the agreements with employees to institute a second tier 
of retirement rates for newly hired employees and for current employees to pay a greater portion of their 
retirement contributions will serve to lower rates, there are two other factors that will impact the 
retirement rates for employees hired under the first tier formula in the short term (one of which will 
impact the rates permanently).  The first item is a recently CalPERS approved methodology for 
amortization and smoothing.  These are outlined in CalPERS Circular Letter 200-019-013.  This policy 
change calls for increasing retirement rates from fiscal year 2015-2016 through fiscal year 2019-2020 with 
the projected increases for Safety (Fire Department) employees being 2.38% in fiscal year 2015-2016 rising 
to 11.9% in fiscal year 2019-2020.  For Miscellaneous employees (all other departments) being 1.28% in 
fiscal year 2015-2016 rising to 6.4% in fiscal year 2019-2020.  After fiscal year 2019-2020, the increases 
will be deleted.  The second item is the retirement of the CCSD’s Side Funds.  “Side Fund” is the term used 
by CalPERS “to account for the difference between the funded status of the (entity’s) pool and the funded 
status of the (entity’s) plan, in addition to your existing unfunded liability”.  It is the ‘catch-up’ required 
when a higher formula plan is adopted by and entity.  For fiscal year 2013-2014, paying the Safety Side 
Fund adds 4.343% to the Net Employer Contribution rate of 30.492% and paying the Miscellaneous Side 
Fund adds 11.484% to the Net Employer Contribution rate of 27.208%.  The final year for paying the Safety 
Side Fund is fiscal year 2014-2015 and the final year for paying the Miscellaneous Side Fund is fiscal year 
2016-2017, at which time the contribution rates should decrease by the Side Fund rates. 
  

Fiscal Year

Wages and 

Salaries

Year-to-Year 

Increase / 

(Decrease)

   2007-2008 2,563,201   $       

   2008-2009 2,566,283             3,082   $                

   2009-2010 2,386,305             (179,978)              

   2010-2011** 2,299,794             (86,511)                

   2011-2012 2,228,801             (70,993)                

   2012-2013 2,281,216             52,415                   

   2013-2014 2,393,418             112,202                

   2014-2015 2,285,226             (108,192)              

   2015-2016 2,199,011             (86,215)                

   2016-2017 2,866,485             667,474                

**This figure does not include severance pay paid to the previous General Manager

129



 
Employee health insurance is the second most expensive employee benefit of the CCSD.  The annual 
employee medical insurance cost increased from $342,810 in fiscal year 2007-2008 to $409,588 in fiscal 
year 2016-2017.  This is an overall increase of $66,778 or 19.5%.  The CCSD changed the insurance plan 
from a PPO to a HMO January 1, 2010, which reduced its contribution (employees staying in the PPO paid 
all of the excess cost).  Agreements with management/confidential employees and SEIU employees have 
also provided for increased premium contributions made by employees. 
 
Retiree health insurance is the third most expensive employee benefit of the CCSD.  It increased from 
$174,820 in fiscal year 2007-2008 to $227,671 in fiscal year 2016-2017.  This is an overall increase of 
$52,851 or 30.2% since fiscal year 2007-2008.  Agreements with management/confidential employees 
and SEIU employees provide for increased premium contributions to be made by retirees and newly hired 
employees will receive a reduced health insurance premium benefit equal to the Public Employees’ 
Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) minimum, which is currently $115.  These changes are expected 
to result in a great reduction of retiree health insurance costs in the future. 
 
The following table shows the year-to-year increases and decreases in the CCSD’s total cash and 
investments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Personnel costs represent 45.13% of the CCSD’s operating expenditures for fiscal year 2016-2017.  Several 
steps, the most significant being discussed above, have been taken to control these costs.  While some 
costs will continue to increase, at least in the short-term future, the overall cost structure has been greatly 
improved and personnel costs appear to be sustainable. 
 
While personnel costs are the largest category of expenditures, another cost area warrants discussion as 
the costs are rising rapidly plus the underlying exposure has the potential to greatly impact the CCSD’s 
economic viability.  These are the maintenance and repair costs.  While these costs range from copier 
repairs to vehicle repairs to pump repairs, the vast majority are related to maintenance and repair costs 
of the water and sewer infrastructure. 
  

June 30,

Total Cash and 

Investments

Year-to-Year 

Increase / 

(Decrease)

2009 4,265,148   $       

2010 4,499,040             233,892   $           

2011** 4,386,277             (112,763)              

2012 4,654,815             268,538                

2013 4,890,266             235,451                

2014 3,877,738             (1,012,528)          

2015 2,446,332             (1,431,406)          

2016 4,980,787             2,534,455             

2017 3,322,139             (1,658,648)          

** While the balance decreased, it would have increased by $293,084 if the capital 

lease for the fire pumper had not been paid off early and the severance package

for the prior general manager had not occurred.

130



 
The following table shows the year-to-increases and decreases in the CCSD’s total maintenance and repair 
costs: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Despite all of these expenditures, there is still significant deferred maintenance in both the Water and 
Wastewater Funds. 
 
Even with the large increases noted above, a large number of projects necessary to maintain water and 
sewer services have been identified and these costs have the possibility of creating serious economic 
consequences for the CCSD. 
 
The Board of Directors approved the operating budget for fiscal year 2017-2018 on June 22, 2017.  
Projected activity for all funds is as follows: 

• Water – a surplus of $77,947; 
• Sustainable Water Facility Project: a deficit of $1,351,815 to be funded from existing cash 

reserves; 
• Wastewater (Sewer) – zero balance; 
• General Fund (Governmental) – zero balance 

 
 
 

June 30,

Total 

Maintenance 

and Repair Costs

Year-to-Year 

Increase / 

(Decrease)

   2008-2009 296,877   $           

   2009-2010 380,638                83,761   $             

   2010-2011 419,797                39,159                   

   2011-2012 530,902                111,105                

   2012-2013 798,283                267,381                

   2013-2014 1,023,755             225,472                

   2014-2015 627,992                (395,763)              

   2015-2016 1,009,841             381,849                

   2016-2017 895,109                (114,732)              

131



 
 
 

Name Position Term Expires

Amanda Rice President December 2020

Greg Sanders Vice President December 2020

Jim Bahringer Director December 2018

Michael Thompson Director December 2018

Harry Farmer Director December 2020

Name Position

Jerry Gruber General Manager

Tim Carmel District Counsel

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ADMINISTRATION

132



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
 

133



Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash 3,756,351   $    (374,817)  $      3,381,534   $    

Receivables:

Interest receivable 5,483                 -                          5,483                 

Taxes 49,110               -                          49,110               

Other 26,479               926,662            953,141            

Inventory -                          9,174                 9,174                 

Prepaid costs 158,932            3,991                 162,923            

Note receivable 2,527                 -                          2,527                 

Loan to enterprise funds 624,493            -                          624,493            

Intangible - water, master plan, net of amortization -                          1,181,614         1,181,614         

Capital assets:

Non-depreciable 15,325,895       19,094,254       34,420,149       

Depreciable, net 1,235,015         9,740,726         10,975,741       

Total capital assets, net depreciation 16,560,910       28,834,980       45,395,890       

Total Assets 21,184,285   $ 30,581,604   $ 51,765,889   $ 

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 962,042   $       271,345   $       1,233,387   $    

.

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 15,146   $         44,684   $         59,830   $         

Accrued expenses 201,643            108,763            310,406            

Accrued interest payable -                          140,252            140,252            

OPEB liability -                          103,598            103,598            

Loan from general fund -                          624,493            624,493            

Refundable deposits 8,440                 91,818               100,258            

Deferred revenue 2,527                 92,740               95,267               

Long-term liabilities:

Net pension liability 3,983,744         1,142,903         5,126,647         

Due within one year 26,725               444,893            471,618            

Due in more than one year 1,148,207         8,773,349         9,921,556         

Total Liabilities 5,386,432   $    11,567,493   $ 16,953,925   $ 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions (80,670)  $        (22,753)  $        (103,423)  $      

NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 16,515,397   $ 19,692,268   $ 36,207,665   $ 

Unrestricted (deficit) 325,168            (384,059)          (58,891)            

Total Net Position 16,840,565   $ 19,308,209   $ 36,148,774   $ 

Primary Government

134



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Revenues

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Expenses

Charges for 

Services

Operating 

Grants

Governmental Activities:

Administration 1,973,696   $    1,332,301   $   -$                   

Fire 2,629,648         18,662              149,716           

Parks and recreation 42,709               -                         -                         

Facilities and resources 597,909            -                         -                         

Interest on long-term debt 2,554                 -                         -                         

Total Governmental Activities 5,246,516         1,350,963        149,716           

Business-Type Activities:

Water 3,559,912         3,315,154        219,713           

Wastewater 2,843,233         1,883,476        -                         

Total Business-Type Activities 6,403,145         5,198,630        219,713           

Total 11,649,661   $ 6,549,593   $   369,429   $      

Continued on next page

135



FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental 

Activities

Business-Type 

Activities Total

Governmental Activities:

Administration (641,395)  $     (641,395)  $     

Fire (2,461,270)      (2,461,270)      

Parks and recreation (42,709)            (42,709)            

Facilities and resources (597,909)          (597,909)          

Interest on long-term debt (2,554)              (2,554)              

Total Governmental Activities (3,745,837)      (3,745,837)      

Business-Type Activities:

Water (25,045)            (25,045)            

Wastewater (959,757)          (959,757)          

Total Business-Type Activities (984,802)          (984,802)          

Total (3,745,837)  $  (984,802)  $     (4,730,639)  $  

Governmental 

Activities

Business-Type 

Activities Total

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes and assessments 2,697,429   $   -$                    2,697,429   $   

Availability charges -                          292,259            292,259            

Connection fees -                          -                          -                          

Franchise fees 70,448              -                          70,448              

Investment income 33,780              17,680              51,460              

Other income 105,020            20,407              125,427            

Total general revenues, investment and

    other income 2,906,677         330,346            3,237,023         

Change in Net Position (839,160)  $     (654,456)  $     (1,493,616)  $  

Net Position - beginning 17,679,725      20,295,932      37,975,657      

Prior period adjustment (see Note 8) -                          (333,267)          (333,267)          

Net position - ending 16,840,565   $ 19,308,209   $ 36,148,774   $ 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Position

136



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental Funds 

 

137



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General

Fund

ASSETS

Cash 3,756,351   $    

Receivables:

Interest 5,483                 

Taxes 49,110               

Other 26,479               

Prepaid expenses 158,932            

Loans to enterprise funds 624,493            

Note receivable 2,527                 

Total Assets 4,623,375   $    

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 15,146   $         

Accrued expenses 201,643            

Refundable deposits 8,440                 

Deferred revenue 2,527                 

Total Liabilities 227,756            

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 190,676            

Assigned 4,204,943         

Total Fund Balances 4,395,619         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 4,623,375   $    

138



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 4,395,619   $    

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement 

of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 16,560,910       

Long-term liabilities and compensated absences have not been 

included in the governmental funds activity:

Net pension liabilities (2,941,032)       

Compensated absences (507,104)          

Loans payable (667,828)          

Net Position of Governmental Activities 16,840,565   $ 

139



 
 
 

General

Fund

REVENUES

Property taxes and assessments 2,697,429   $    

Weed abatement 18,662               

Franchise fees 70,448               

Intergovernmental 149,716            

Use of money and property 33,780               

Charges for administrative servies 1,332,301         

Miscellaneous 105,020            

Other sources:

Debt proceeds 622,315            

Total Revenues 5,029,671         

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Administration 1,633,596         

Fire 2,007,333         

Parks and recreation 42,709               

Facilities and resources 597,929            

Debt service:

Principal 35,051               

Interest and other charges 2,554                 

Capital outlay 628,711            

Total Expenditures 4,947,883         

Net Change in Fund Balances 81,788               

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 4,313,831         

Fund Balance - End of Year 4,395,619   $    

140



 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 81,788   $         

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 

different because:

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures.  However, in 

the Statement of Activities, pension expense is measured as the change in net 

pension liability and the amortization of deferred outflows and inflows related to 

pensions.  This amount represents the change in pension related amounts. (789,602)          

Loan proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds; 

however, issuing debt increses long-term liabilities in the statement of net 

position.  In the current period, these amounts are:

Loans issued (622,315)          

Repayment of loans payable 35,051               

In he statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts 

earned during the fiscal year in governmental funds, however, expenditures for 

these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially 

the amount paid). (58,576)            

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the 

statement of activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated 

useful l ives and epensed as depreciation expense.  In the current period, these 

amounts are:

Capital outlay 628,711            

Depreciation expense (114,217)          

Combined adjustment for capital outlay and depreciation 514,494            

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (839,160)  $      

141



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Fund Financial Statements 
Proprietary Funds 

 

142



 

Water

Fund

Wastewater 

Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash in bank 209,411   $       (584,228)  $     (374,817)  $     
Accounts receivable (net of allowance) 577,891            348,771            926,662            
Inventory 9,174                 -                          9,174                 
Prepaid expenses 3,991                 -                          3,991                 

Total current assets 800,467            (235,457)          565,010            

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Construction in progress 16,598,457      221,418            16,819,875      
Land 898,949            1,375,430         2,274,379         
Plant and facil ities 18,694,610      24,022,337      42,716,947      
Machinery and equipment 604,703            1,030,803         1,635,506         

Less: accumulated depreciation (13,691,477)    (20,920,250)    (34,611,727)    

Total noncurrent assets 23,105,242      5,729,738         28,834,980      

Other assets:
Intangible - water master plan,

   net $429,676 amortization 1,181,614         -                          1,181,614         

Total other assets 1,181,614         -                          1,181,614         

Total Assets 25,087,323      5,494,281         30,581,604      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 154,667            116,678            271,345            

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 24,555              20,129              44,684              
Accrued expensees 45,000              63,763              108,763            
Accrued interest payable 139,941            311                    140,252            
OPEB liability 48,122              55,476              103,598            
Loan from general fund 157,726            466,767            624,493            
Refundable deposits 91,818              -                          91,818              
Deferred revenue 92,740              -                          92,740              
Current portion of noncurrent l iabilities 326,893            118,000            444,893            

Total current l iabilities 926,795            724,446            1,651,241         

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 651,455            491,448            1,142,903         
Compensated absences 26,378              49,152              75,530              
Note payable, less current portion 7,844,819         853,000            8,697,819         

Total noncurrent l iabilities 8,522,652         1,393,600         9,916,252         

Total Liabilities 9,449,447         2,118,046         11,567,493      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions (12,969)            (9,784)              (22,753)            

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 14,933,530      4,758,738         19,692,268      
Unrestricted (defecit) 871,982            (1,256,041)      (384,059)          

Total Net Positi ion 15,805,512   $ 3,502,697   $   19,308,209   $ 

Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funds

143



 

 
 

Water

Fund

Wastewater 

Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Utility sales 2,147,294   $   1,883,476   $   4,030,770   $   

Service charges and fees 1,167,860         -                         1,167,860         

Intergovernmental - grants 219,713            -                         219,713            

Miscellaneous 1,182                 19,225              20,407              

Total Operating Revenues 3,536,049         1,902,701        5,438,750         

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 510,049            451,356           961,405            

Payroll taxes and benefits 316,876            295,618           612,494            

Maintenance and repairs 523,960            529,362           1,053,322         

Office supplies, publications, and dues 26,767              25,827              52,594              

Licenses and fees 157,986            89,375              247,361            

Rent 37,554              9,595                47,149              

Professional services 199,174            57,050              256,224            

Operating supplies 56,966              46,672              103,638            

Employee travel and training 3,772                 4,851                8,623                 

Retrofit and rebate program -                          -                         -                          

Util ities 173,059            237,427           410,486            

General and administrative overhead 582,420            429,775           1,012,195         

Amortization 107,419            -                         107,419            

Depreciation 523,504            632,639           1,156,143         

Total Operating Expenses 3,219,506         2,809,547        6,029,053         

Operating Income (Loss) 316,543            (906,846)         (590,303)          

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Availability charges 177,100            115,159           292,259            

Connection fees -                          -                         -                          

Investment income 17,680              -                         17,680              

Interest expense (340,406)          (33,686)           (374,092)          

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (145,626)          81,473              (64,153)            

Change in net assets 170,917            (825,373)         (654,456)          

Net position at beginning of year 16,252,391      ` 4,043,541        20,295,932      

Prior period adjustment (see Note 8) (617,796)          284,529           (333,267)          

Net position at end of year 15,805,512   $ 3,502,697   $   19,308,209   $ 

Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funds

144



Water

Fund

Wastewater 

Fund Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from operating revenue 3,249,500   $   1,880,690   $   5,130,190   $    

Cash received from local agencies 219,113           19,225              238,338            

Payments to suppliers (1,629,065)      (1,401,929)      (3,030,994)       

Payments to employees (826,925)         (746,974)         (1,573,899)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,012,623        (248,988)         763,635            

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interfund loans made 157,726           466,767           624,493            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital

    Financing Activities 157,726           466,767           624,493            

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal paid on capital debt (322,672)         (122,756)         (445,428)          

Interest paid on capital debt (340,406)         (33,686)           (374,092)          

Purchase of capital assets (528,372)         (130,028)         (658,400)          

Change in net pension liability (1,055,279)      (163,919)         (1,219,198)       

Standby availability 177,100           115,159           292,259            

Connection fees -                         -                         -                          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related

    Financing Activities (2,069,629)      (335,230)         (2,404,859)       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AND NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Investment income 17,680              -                         17,680               

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing

    and Non-Operating Activities 17,680              -                         17,680               

Net change in cash (881,600)         (117,451)         (999,051)          

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 1,091,011        (466,777)         624,234            
Cash and cash equivalents - end 209,411   $      (584,228)  $     (374,817)  $      

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net operating income (loss) 316,543           (906,846)         (590,303)          

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

    net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 523,504           632,639           1,156,143         

Amortization 107,419           -                         107,419            

Net changes in assets and liabilities: -                          

(Increase) in accounts receivable (67,436)           (2,786)              (70,222)            

Decrease in inventory -                         3,589                3,589                 

(Increase) in prepaid expenses (3,991)              -                         (3,991)               

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 24,302              (6,328)              17,974               

Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 41,298              (23,110)           18,188               

(Decrease) in accrued interest payable (5,445)              (13,061)           (18,506)            

Increase in refundable deposits 48,027              -                         48,027               

Increase in OPEB liability 48,122              55,476              103,598            

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (19,720)           11,439              (8,281)               

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,012,623   $   (248,988)  $     763,635   $       

Business-Type Activities

145



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 
 

146



 
NOTE 1:  Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting Entity 

The Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) is a multi-purpose special district established on 
December 9, 1976.  CCSD is a political subdivision of the State of California and operates under a Board of 
Directors-Manager form of government.  CCSD provides water, wastewater, fire protection, parks and 
recreation, open space, street lighting, conservation and general administrative services. 
 
There are no component units included in this report which meet the criteria of Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity as amended by GASB Statement 
No. 39. 
 
Basis of Accounting, Measurement Focus, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The basic financial statements of CCSD are composed of the following: 

• Government Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
• Fund Financial Statements 
• Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government as a whole.  
These statements include separate columns for the governmental activities and business-type activities 
of the primary government (including its blended component units), as well as its discreetly presented 
component units.  Eliminations have been made in the Statement of Activities so that certain allocated 
expenses are recorded only once (by the function to which they were allocated).  However, general 
government expenses have not been allocated as indirect expenses to the various functions of CCSD. 
 
Government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the economic resources measurement focus, all (both current 
and long-term) economic resources and obligations of the reporting government are reported in the 
government-wide financial statement.  Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and 
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.  Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from non-exchange transaction are recognized in accordance with 
the requirements of GASB Statement number 33. 
 
Program revenues include charges for services, special assessments, and payments made by parties 
outside of the reporting government’s citizenry if that money is restricted to a particular program.  
Program revenues are netted with program expenses in the statement of activities to present the net cost 
of each program. 

147



 

NOTE 1:  Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Basis of Accounting, Measurement Focus, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

Fund Financial Statements 

The underlying accounting system of CCSD is organized and operated on the basis of separate funds, each 
of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity.  The operations of each fund are accounted for 
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues 
and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.  Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted 
for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which 
spending activities are controlled. 
 
Fund financial statements for the primary government are presented after the government-wide financial 
statements.  These statements display information about major funds individually and non-major funds 
in the aggregate for governmental and enterprise funds. 
 
Governmental Funds 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented using the modified-accrual basis of 
accounting.  Their revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available as net current 
assets.  Measurable means that the amounts can be estimated, or otherwise determined.  Available 
means that the amounts were collected during the reporting period or soon enough thereafter to be 
available to finance the expenditures accrued for the reporting period.  Revenue recognition is subject to 
the measurable and availability criteria for the governmental funds in the fund financial statements.  
Exchange transactions are recognized as revenues in the period in which they are earned (i.e., the related 
goods or services are provided).  Locally imposed derived tax revenues are recognized as revenues in the 
period in which the underlying exchange transaction upon which they are based takes place.  Imposed 
non-exchange transactions are recognized as revenues in the period for which they were imposed.  If the 
period of use is not specified, they are recognized as revenues in the period for which they were imposed.  
If the period of use is not specified, they are recognized as revenues when an enforceable legal claim to 
the revenues arises or when they are received, whichever occurs first.  Government-mandated and 
voluntary non-exchange transactions are recognized as revenues when all applicable eligibility 
requirements have been met. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented using the current financial resources 
measurement focus.  This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on 
their balance sheets.  The reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered to be a measure of 
“available spendable resources.”  Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues 
and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.  
Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of “available spendable resources” 
during a period. 

148



 
NOTE 1:  Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Basis of Accounting, Measurement Focus, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

Non-current portions of long-term receivables due to governmental funds are reported on their balance 
sheets in spite of their spending measurement focus.  Special reporting treatments are used to indicate, 
however, that they should not be considered “available spendable resources,” since they do not represent 
net current assets.  Recognition of governmental fund type revenue represented by non-current 
receivables are deferred until they become current receivables.  Non-current portions of other long-term 
receivables are offset by fund balance reserve accounts.  Because of their spending measurement focus, 
expenditure recognition for governmental fund types excludes amounts represented by non-current 
liabilities.  Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as 
governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities. 
 
 
Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the fiscal year that resources 
were expended, rather than as capital assets.  The proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as an other 
financing sources rather than as a fund liability.  Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness are 
reported as fund expenditures. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund, expenditures/expenses are 
considered to be paid first from restricted resources, and then from unrestricted resources. 
 
CCSD reports the following major governmental fund: 
 

General Fund:  the primary operating fund of CCSD.  It is used to account for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 
CCSD reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 

Water Fund:  accounts for the activities of CCSD’s water operations. 
Wastewater Fund:  accounts for activities of CCSD’s sewer operations. 

 
Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally 
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that 
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board.  Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their 
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with proprietary funds’ principal and ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of 
the Water and Wastewater Funds are charges to customers.  Operating expenses for the Water and 
Wastewater Funds include non-capital expenses and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

149



 
NOTE 1:  Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

An annual budget is adopted by the Board of Directors at the start of each fiscal year.  Any changes or 
revisions to that budget throughout the year must be approved by the Board of Directors. 
 
Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting is used for the General Fund.  Encumbrances are recorded when purchase 
orders are issued but are not considered expenditures until liabilities for payments are incurred.  
Encumbrances are no longer reported as a separate fund balance category on the balance sheet.  
Encumbrances do not lapse at the close of the fiscal year but are carried forward until liquidated. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, CCSD considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity 
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value. 
 
Accounts Receivable 

CCSD water and wastewater charges are billed bimonthly for all residential and commercial customers.  
Customer accounts receivable are placed on the tax roll when the receivable is deemed uncollectible by 
CCSD.  Management has determined that an allowance for doubtful accounts is zero and not considered 
necessary since it would not be material. 
 
Prepaid Expenses 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2016, are recorded as 
prepaid expenses. 
 
Property Taxes 

The County of San Luis Obispo bills and collects property taxes for CCSD.  The County charges CCSD for 
these services.  Tax revenues are recognized as soon as the County indicates that they are due to the 
CCSD. 

150



 
NOTE 1:  Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 

General capital assets generally result from expenditures in governmental funds.  These assets are 
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but are 
not reported in the fund financial statements. 
 
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual costs are not available.  
Donated fixed assets are stated at their fair market value on the date donated.  CCSD currently maintains 
a capitalization threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life exceeding two years.  Improvements are 
capitalized and the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the net asset 
or materially extend the asset’s life are not. 
 
Capital assets used in operations are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method in the applicable governmental or business-type activity column in the government-wide financial 
statements.  Depreciation is charged as an expense against operations and accumulated depreciation is 
reported on the respective statement of net assets.  The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 

 Equipment  3 to 10 years 
 Improvements  5 to 20 years 

 
Compensated Absences 

The accrual for vacation/sick time earned but not taken by staff employees was calculated based on actual 
vacation/sick days and applied to the individual employees’ hourly rate. 
 
Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities or business-type activities fund type statement of net assets.  In the fund financial statements, 
governmental fund types report the face amount of debt issued as other financing sources. 
 
Concentrations 

CCSD will provide water/wastewater services to customers located in the County of San Luis Obispo.  
Consequently, its ability to collect amounts due from customers may be affected by economic 
fluctuations, within this region and within the State of California as a whole. 
 
Intergovernmental Revenues 

For governmental funds, intergovernmental revenues, such as contributions awarded on a non-
reimbursement basis, are recorded as receivables and revenues when measurable and available. 
 

151



 
NOTE 1:  Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Fund Balances 

Fund balance can now be displayed in the following classifications depicting the relative strength of the 
spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 
 

• Non-spendable fund balance – amounts that are not in a spendable form are required to be 
maintained intact. 

 
• Restricted fund balance – amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers, through 

constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. 
 

• Committed fund balance – amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using 
its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to remove 
or change the constraint. 

 
• Assigned fund balance – amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can 

be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body 
delegates the authority. 

 
• Unassigned fund balances – amounts that have no specific restrictions, commitments or 

assignments. 
 
If restricted and unrestricted assets are available for the same purpose, the restricted assets will be used 
before unrestricted assets. 
 
Net Position 

Net position presents the difference between assets and liabilities in the statement of net position.  Net 
position invested in capital assets is reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.  Net position is reported as restricted when 
there are legal limitations imposed on their use by external restrictions by creditors, grantors, laws or 
regulations of other governments. 
 
Pensions 

For purpose of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deduction from the Plans’ 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

152



 
NOTE 2:  Cash and Investments 
 
CCSD pools idle cash from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through investment.  Earnings 
from such investments are allocated to the respective funds on the basis of applicable cash balances of 
each fund. 
 
The values of cash and investments at June 30, 2017 are summarized as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The California Government Cod requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure a 
district’s deposits by pledging government securities as collateral.  The market value of pledged securities 
must equal at least 110% of a district’s deposits.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure 
district deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of a district’s total 
deposits.  CCSD may waive collateral requirements for deposits which are fully insured up to $250,000 by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 
 
Credit Risk, Carrying Amount, and Market Value 

Cash is classified in three categories of credit risk as follows: 

Category 1 – insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or by its agent in the entity’s 
name; 

Category 2 – collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department 
or agent in the entity’s name; and 

Category 3 -- uncollateralized 
 
At June 30, 2017, the carrying amounts of the CCSD’s cash demand deposits were $480,095.  The bank’s 
balances were 649,385.  This difference is due to the normal deposits in transit and outstanding checks.  
CCSD cash deposits by category as of June 30, 2017, were as follows: 

 

1 2 3

Bank accounts 649,385   $    -$                  -$                  649,385   $    480,095   $    

Bank Balance

Carrying 

Amount

Category

Primary government 600   $                 

Agency funds 480,095              

Cash and investments with:

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 2,900,839          

Total Cash and Investments 3,381,534   $     

153



 
NOTE 3:  Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Summary of capital assets by major classifications is as follows: 
 

 
Depreciation expense for all funds was $1,270,360 for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Balance

June 30, 2016 Additions

Obsolete 

Assets/ 

Reclassified

Balance

June 30, 2017

Governmental Activities

Non-depreciable capital assets

Land 14,990,732   $ -$                    -$                    14,990,732   $ 

Construction in progress 328,767            6,396                 -                          335,163            

Total non-depreciable

    capital assets 15,319,499       6,396                 -                          15,325,895       

Depreciable capital assets

Buildings and improvements 1,753,270         -                          -                          1,753,270         

Equipment 1,546,551         622,315            -                          2,168,866         

Total depreciable capital assets 3,299,821         622,315            -                          3,922,136         

Less accumulated depreciation (2,572,904)       (114,217)          -                          (2,687,121)       

Net depreciable capital

   assets 726,917            508,098            -                          1,235,015         

Net capital assets 16,046,416   $ 514,494   $       -$                    16,560,910   $ 

Business-Type Activities

Non-depreciable capital assets

Land 2,274,379   $    -$                    -$                    2,274,379   $    

Construction in progress 17,139,969       -                          (320,094)          16,819,875       

Total non-depreciable

    capital assets 19,414,348       -                          (320,094)          19,094,254       

Depreciable capital assets

Buildings and facil ities 41,618,447       1,098,500         -                          42,716,947       

Machinery and equipment 1,755,512         -                          (120,006)          1,635,506         

Total depreciable capital assets 43,373,959       1,098,500         (120,006)          44,352,453       

Less accumulated depreciation (33,455,584)    (1,156,143)       -                          (34,611,727)    

Net depreciable capital

   assets 9,918,375         (57,643)            (120,006)          9,740,726         

Net capital assets 29,332,723   $ (57,643)  $        (440,100)  $      28,834,980   $ 

154



 
NOTE 4:  Accrued Expenses 
 
Accrued expenses as of June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NOTE 5:  Long-Term Debt 
 
Loan Payable 

On November 1, 2012, the CCSD entered into a loan agreement for $102,000 with the Municipal Finance 
Corporation to purchase vehicles.  The interest rate on the loan is 3.25%.  At June 30, 2017, the loan 
payable principal balance outstanding was $9,267.  The loan is allocated 34.3% to the general fund, 
32.95% to water operations, and 32.75% to wastewater operations.  The loan payable is due April 1, 2018. 
 
On July 1, 2013, the CCSD entered into a loan agreement for $31,350 with John Deere Finance to purchase 
a vehicle.  The interest rate on the loan is 0.0%.  At June 30, 2017, the loan payable principal balance 
outstanding was $6,792.  The loan payable is due July 30, 2018. 
 
On October 30, 2013, the CCSD entered into a loan agreement for $53,612 with Municipal Finance 
Corporation to purchase vehicles.  The interest rate on the loan is 3.5%.  At June 30, 2017, the loan payable 
principal balance outstanding was $4,835.  The loan is allocated 65.71% to the fire operations and 34.29% 
for general fund administration. 
 
On February 26, 2016, the CCSD entered in a loan agreement for $33,157 with Ford Motor Credit Company 
to purchase a vehicle.  The interest rate on the loan is 5.95%.  At June 30, 2017, the loan payable principal 
balance outstanding was $24,617.  The loan is due January 26, 2021. 
 
The loan payments are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Salaries payable 171,219   $         

Other post employment benefits (OPEB) payable 187,309              

Total accrued liabilities 358,528              

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total

2018 26,725   $        1,786   $          28,511   $           

2019 7,263                905                   8,168                  

2020 7,152                493                   7,645                  

2021 4,373                87                      4,460                  

Total 45,513   $        3,271   $          48,784   $           

155



 
NOTE 5:  Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Notes Payable 

A City National Bank note payable totaling $1,585,000 was issued on September 23, 2010 with an interest 
rate at 4.5 percent.  At June 30, 2017, the note payable principal balance outstanding was $,971,000.  Note 
principal payments are due annually on September 23rd through 2023. 
 
A TPB Investments, Inc. note payable totaling $8,939,000 was issued on August 7, 2014 with an interest 
rate at 4.11 percent.  At June 30, 2017, the note payable principal balance outstanding was $8,171,712.  
Note principal payments are due semiannually on February 1st and August 1st through 2034. 
 
The note payments are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Total future debt service payments by activity are as follows: 

 
 

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total

2018 444,893   $      374,029   $      818,922   $        

2019 468,465           354,859           823,324              

2020 486,604           334,806           821,410              

2021 505,327           313,987           819,314              

2022 529,662           292,258           821,920              

2023-2027 2,488,575       876,273           3,364,848          

2028-2032 2,667,576       629,552           3,297,128          

2033-2037 1,551,610       355,746           1,907,356          

Total 9,142,712   $  3,531,510   $  12,674,222   $  

Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2018 26,725   $       1,786   $          444,893   $     374,029   $     847,433   $        

2019 7,263               905                   468,465          354,859          831,492              

2020 7,152               493                   486,604          334,806          829,055              

2021 4,373               87                     505,327          313,987          823,774              

2022 529,662          292,258          821,920              

2023-2027 2,488,575       876,273          3,364,848          

2028-2032 2,667,576       629,552          3,297,128          

2033-2037 1,551,610       355,746          1,907,356          

Total 45,513   $       3,271   $          9,142,712   $ 3,531,510   $ 12,723,006   $  

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

156



 
NOTE 5:  Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017: 

 
A fire truck was purchased for $627,315 at the end of the fiscal year. The financing term has not been 
finalized at June 30, 2017.  The note is recorded for the purchase. 
 
 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Description 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public Agency Cost-
Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (the Plan), administered by the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  The Plan’s benefit provisions are established by statute.  The 
Plan is included as a pension trust fund in the CalPERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which is 
available online at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
 
The Plan consists of a miscellaneous pool and a safety pool (referred to as “risk pools), which are 
comprised of individual employer miscellaneous and safety rate plans, respectively, including those of the 
Cambria Community Services District.  The Cambria Community Services District’s employer rate plans in 
the miscellaneous risk pool include the Miscellaneous plan (Miscellaneous), the PEPRA Miscellaneous plan 
(PEPRA Misc.) and the Miscellaneous Second Tier plan (2nd Tier Misc.).  The Cambria Community Services 
District’s employer rate plans in the safety risk pool include the Safety plan (Safety), the PEPRA Safety Fire 
plan (PEPRA Fire) and the Safety Fire Second Tier plan (2nd Tier Fire). 

Balance

June 30, 2016 Additions Reductions

Balance

June 30, 2017 Current

Governmental Activities

Loans payable 80,563   $         -$                  (35,050)  $       45,513   $         26,725   $    

Net pension liability 2,136,180         1,847,564       -                         3,983,744         -                    

Compensated absences 448,528            58,576            -                         507,104            -                    

Long-term liabilities 2,665,271   $    1,906,140   $ (35,050)  $       4,536,361   $    26,725   $    

Business-Type Activities:

Notes payable 9,570,573   $    -$                  (427,861)  $     9,142,712   $    444,893   $ 

Net pension liability 1,510,193         -                        (367,290)         1,142,903         -                    

Compensated absences 83,812               -                        (8,282)              75,530               -                    

Long-term liabilities 11,164,578   $ -$                  (803,433)  $     10,361,145   $ 444,893   $ 

157

http://www.calpers.ca.gov/


 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Benefits Provided 

The Plan provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death 
benefits to plan members who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years 
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Classic members and PEPRA Safety 
members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  
PEPRA Miscellaneous members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52 with 
statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after five years of 
service.  The death benefit is the Basic Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments for each plan are 
applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect 
at June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows: 

 

Employer Rate Plan Miscellaneous PEPRA Misc. 2nd Tier Misc.

Hire date
Prior to

October 1, 2012

On or after January 

1, 2013

On or after October 

1, 2012

Benefit formula 3.0% @ 60 2.0% @ 62 2.0% @ 60

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service

Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life

Retirement age 50 52 50

Monthly benefits, as % of eligible 

compensation
2.0% to 3.0% 1.0% to 2.5% 1.0% to 2.5%

Required employee contribution rates 7.769% 6.25% 6.886%

Required employer contribution rates 12.657% 6.555% 7.159%

Employer Rate Plans in the Miscellaneous Risk Pool

Employer Rate Plan Miscellaneous PEPRA Misc. 2nd Tier Misc.

Hire date
Prior to

December 28, 2012

On or after January 

1, 2013

On or after 

December 28, 2012

Benefit formula 3.0% @ 50 2.7% @ 57 3.0% @ 55

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service

Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life

Retirement age 50 50 50

Monthly benefits, as % of eligible 

compensation
3.0% 2.0% to 2.7% 2.4% to 3.0%

Required employee contribution rates 8.987% 11.5% 8.981%

Required employer contribution rates 19.536% 12.082% 16.656%

Employer Rate Plans in the Safety Risk Pool

158



 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Contributions 

Section 20814© of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the CalPERS actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Contribution rates for the employer 
rate plans are determined through the CalPERS annual actuarial valuation process.  Each employer rate 
plan’s actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the employer rate 
plan’s allocated share of the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, and any unfunded 
accrued liability.  The Cambria Community Services District is required to contribute the difference 
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.  The Cambria 
Community Services District’s contributions to the risk pools in the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
were as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions 

As of June 30, 2017, Cambria Community Services District reported net pension liabilities for its 
proportionate shares of the net pension liability of each risk pool as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Contributions

Miscellaneous Risk Pool 483,948   $             

Safety Risk Pool 178,345                   

Total contributions 662,293   $             

Proportionate 

Share of Net 

Pension Liability

Miscellaneous Risk Pool 3,983,744   $          

Safety Risk Pool 1,142,903               

Total contributions 5,126,647   $          

* The proportionate share of the tota l  NPL to each of the enterprise and internal  service

   funds  is  not being a l located because i t i s  deemed to have an immamteria l  effect on

   the financia l  s tatements .

159



 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

The Cambria Community Services District’s net pension liability for each risk pool is measured as the 
proportionate share of each risk pool’s net pension liability.  GASB 68 indicates that to the extent different 
contribution rates are assessed based on separate relationships that constitute the collective net pension 
liability, the determination of the employer’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability 
should be made in a manner that reflects those relationships.  The allocation method used by CalPERS to 
determine each employer’s proportionate share reflects those relationships through the employer rate 
plans they sponsor within the respective risk pools.  An actuarial measurement of the employer’s rate 
plan liability and asset-related information are used when available, and proportional allocations of 
individual employer rate plan amounts as of the valuation dates are used where not available. 
 
The Cambria Community Service District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 
2015, the valuation date, was calculated as follows: 
 
In determining an employer’s proportionate share, the employer rate plans included in the Plan were 
assigned to either the Miscellaneous or Safety risk pool.  Estimates of the total pension liability and the 
fiduciary net position were first determined for the individual rate plans and each risk pool as of the 
valuation date, June 30, 2015.  Each employer rate plan’s fiduciary net position was subtracted from its 
total pension liability to obtain its net pension liability as of the valuation date.  The Cambria Community 
Services District’s proportionate share percentage for each risk pool at the valuation date was calculated 
by dividing the Cambria Community Services District’s net pension liability for each of it’s employer rate 
plans within each risk pool by the net pension liability of the respective risk pool as of the valuation date. 
 
The Cambria Community Service District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 
2016, the measurement date, was calculated as follows: 
 

Each risk pool’s total pension liability was computed at the measurement date, June 30, 2016, by 
applying standard actuarial roll-forward methods to the total pension liability amounts as of the 
valuation date.  The fiduciary net position for each risk pool at the measurement date was determined 
by CalPERS’ Financial Office.  The net pension liability for each risk pool at June 30, 2016, was 
computed by subtracting the respective risk pool’s fiduciary net position from its total pension 
liability. 
 
The individual employer risk pool’s proportionate share percentage of the total pension liability and 
fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2016, was calculated by applying Cambria Community Services 
District’s proportionate share percentage as of the valuation date (described above) to the respective 
risk pool’s total pension liability and fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2016, to obtain the total 
pension liability and fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2016.  The fiduciary net position was then 
subtracted from the total pension liability to obtain the net pension liability as of the measurement 
date. 

160



 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

The Cambria Community Services District’s proportionate share percentage of the total pension liability 
and fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2015, and June 30, 2016, was as follows: 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Cambria Community Services District recognized pension expense 
of $526,075.  At June 30, 2017, the Cambria Community Services District reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
 

 Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources 

 Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 214,023   $         (3,419)  $            

Changes of Assumptions -                            -                            

Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on 

Pension Plan Investments 331,380              -                            

Adjustment due to Differences in Proportions -                            (100,004)            

Difference between Actual and Required Contributions 25,691                -                            

Contributions after Measurement Date 662,293              -                            

Total 1,233,387   $     (103,423)  $       

 Miscellaneous 

Risk Pool 

 Safety Risk 

Pool 

Proportion at measurement date - June 30, 2015 0.099404% 0.022309%

Proportion at measurement date - June 30, 2016 0.114677% 0.022067%

Change - increase (decrease) 0.015273%  (0.000242)%

161



 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Amounts other than contributions subsequent to the measurement date reported as deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense 
as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Measurement Date

June 30:

 Deferred 

Outflows/(Inflows)

of Resources 

2017 24,997   $                           

2018 33,469                                 

2019 196,362                              

2020 212,843                              

2021 -                                            

2022 -                                            

Total 467,671   $                         

162



 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

C. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations were determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 

 
D. Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65%.  To determine whether the 
municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, CalPERS stress tested 
employer rate plans within the Plan that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different 
from the actuarially assumed discount rate.  Based on the testing, none of the tested employer rate plans 
run out of assets.  Therefore, the current 7.65% discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal 
bond rate calculation is not necessary.  The stress test results are presented in a detailed report, GASB 
Statements 67 and 68 Crossover Testing Report for Measurement Date June 30, 2016 based on June 30, 
2015 Valuations, that can be obtained from the CalPERS website. 

 Miscellaneous  Safety 

Valuation Date June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015

Measurement Date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65% 7.65%

Inflation 2.75% 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase(1) Varies by Age & 

Length of Service

Varies by Age & 

Length of Service

Investment Rate of Return
(2)

7.50% 7.50%

Mortality Rate Table
(3)

Derived Using 

CalPERS' 

Membership Data

Derived Using 

CalPERS' 

Membership Data

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment

(2) Net of Pens ion Plan Investment and Adminis trative Expenses ; includes  inflation

(3) The probabi l i ties  of mortal i ty are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from

      1997 to 2011.  Pre-reti rement and post-reti rement mortai l i ty rates  include 20 years  of projected

      mortal i ty improvement us ing Sca le BB publ ished by the Society of Actuaries .

163



 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

According to Paragraph 30 of GASB 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without 
reduction for pension plan administrative expense.  For the CalPERS Plan, the 7.65% investment return 
assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses.  Administrative expenses 
are assumed to be 15 basis points.  An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have 
been 7.65%.  using the lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net 
pension liability.  CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did not 
find it to be a material difference. 
 
CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular asset liability management 
review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018.  Any changes to the discount rate will 
require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach.  For these reasons, CalPERS expects to continue 
using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations through at least the 
year ended 2017-18.  CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in calculation until 
such time as CalPERS has changed their methodology. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows.  Such cash flows 
were dev eloped assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on 
time and as scheduled in all future years.  Using historical returns of all the Plan’s assets classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 11 years) and the long-term (11-
60 years) using a building-block approach.  Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and 
long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for the Plan.  The expected rate of return was set 
by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for 
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns.  The expected rate of return 
was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest 
one quarter of one percent. 
 
 

164



 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation.  These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
E. Sensitivity of the Cambrian Community Services District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension 

Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Cambria Community Services District’s proportionate share of the net position 
liability of each risk pool as of the measurement date, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what 
the Cambria Community Services District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than 
the current rate: 

 
 
 
 
 

Asset Class

New Strategic 

Allocation

Real Return

Years 1 - 10 (a)

Real Return

Years 11+ (b)

Global Equity 51.0%       5.25%       5.71%       

Global Fixed Income 20.0%       0.99%       2.43%       

Inflation Sensitive 6.0%       0.45%       3.36%       

Private Equity 10.0%       6.83%       6.95%       

Real Estate 10.0%       4.50%       5.13%       

Infrastructure and Forestland 2.0%       4.50%       5.09%       

Liquidity 1.0%       -0.55%       -1.05%       

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period

(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

Discount Rate

-1% (6.65%)

Current

Discount Rate 

(7.65%)

Discount Rate

+1% (8.65%)

Cambria Community Services 

District's proportionate share of the 

Miscellaneous Risk Pool's net pension 

liability

6,043,222$       3,983,744$       2,281,687$       

Cambria Community Services 

District's proportionate share of the 

Safety Risk Pool's net pension liability

1,797,182$       1,142,903$       605,808$           

Total 7,840,404$       5,126,647$       2,887,495$       

165



 
NOTE 6:  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

F. Post-employemnt Benefits 

In addition to pension benefits, the District provides post-retirement health care benefits through the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System.  Employees who retire on or after attaining age 50 and 
are vested, are eligible for District paid health insurance. 
 
For employees hired prior to October 1, 2012, the District’s financial obligation is to pay 85% of the cost 
of the coverage for the eligible retiree and any eligible dependents.  For employees hired on or after 
October 1, 2012, the District’s financial obligation is to pay the CalPERS minimum health contribution only. 
 
On July 1, 2015, the District conducted an actuarial valuation based on the Alternative Measurement 
Method to determine the required funding for this health care benefits program. 
 
The actuarial accrued liability for the District’s retiree health benefits program on this measurement date 
was determined to be $1,227,041.  This valuation is based on a discount rate of 5.5% and an inflation rate 
of 3.3%.  The District’s funding policy is to pay current year costs only.  Currently 32 retired employees are 
receiving paid health care benefits totaling $13,991 per month. 
 
Below are the require disclosures for this plan: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amount

Number of active participants 22   

Employer's actuarially required contributions 242,785   $         

Employer's actual contributions 193,758   $         

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 2,417,964   $     

Actuarial Valuation of Assets (AVA) -$                      

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)=(AAL less AVL) 2,417,964   $     

Funded Ratio (AVA/AAL) 0%   

Estimated Payroll 2,401,516   $     

UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 153%   

166



 
NOTE 7:  Joint Powers Agencies 

The Cambria Community Services District participates in a joint venture under a Joint Power Agency (JPA), 
the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA).  The SDRMA was established to provide general 
liability, workers compensation, automobile errors and omission, and property loss coverage to special 
districts.  The SDRMA is administered by a Board of Directors, consisting of seven members elected by 
districts participating.  The Board is responsible for establishing premium rates and making budgeting 
decisions. 
 
Coverage under current policies includes property loss, general liability, auto liability and comprehensive/ 
collision, and public officials’ and employees’ errors and omissions.  Claims over the self-insured amounts 
are covered by the SDRMA within the limits of the policy.  Each member district is assessed a premium in 
accordance with the JPA agreement creating the agency. 
 
CCSD is also participating in two separate Joint Powers Agreements.  The first is an agreement with the 
City of Morro Bay, the Cayucos Fire District, and the South Bay Fire Department to operate an air fill 
compressor station for the respective fire departments.  CCSD pays their share of the member 
contributions due on an annual basis, not to exceed $1,000 per year.  There is no contingent liability for 
CCSD at June 30, 2016. 
 
The second is an agreement with the Coast Unified School District (CUSD) to lease property for the 
operation of the Santa Rosa Creek Well #4, the CUSD water well, pump, and distribution facilities for the 
purpose of securing the conveying groundwater.  CCSD pays CUSD an annual fee for the easement and 
access to the site operation and maintenance repairs.  On November 15, 2012, a new agreement was 
subsequently negotiated including a new initial annual payment of $34,592.  The agreement also provides 
for an annual adjustment for inflation based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI), with a cap on such 
increases of 4%.  The annual fee for fiscal year ending 2016 was $36,728. 
 
 
NOTE 8:  Prior Period Adjustment 

Prior period adjustment relates to the pension liability and fixed assets from the prior year. 
 

167



 
 
 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

 
Management of Cambria Community Services District 
Cambria, California 
 
I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cambria Community Services District 
(CCSD), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, which collectively comprise the CCSD’s basic financial 
statements and have issued my report thereon dated June 11, 2018.  I conducted my audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing my audit, I considered the CCSD’s internal control over financial reporting as 
a basis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the CCSD’s internal 
control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
CCSD’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no 
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
 

168



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CCSD’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
David D. Bruner, CPA 
Merced, California 
June 11, 2018

169



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
 

 

170



 
 
 

Orignial Final Actual

REVENUES

Property taxes and assessments 2,950,307   $ 2,950,307   $ 2,697,429   $ (252,878)  $   

Weed abatement 10,493            10,493            18,662            8,169               

Franchise fees 72,400            72,400            70,448            (1,952)            

Intergovernmental 167,625          167,625          149,716          (17,909)          

Use of money and property 23,902            23,902            33,780            9,878               

Charges for administrative servies 1,332,316       1,332,316       1,332,301       (15)                  

Miscellaneous 88,836            88,836            105,020          16,184            

Other sources:

Debt proceeds -                        -                        622,315          622,315          

Total Revenues 4,645,879       4,645,879       5,029,671       383,792          

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Administration 1,672,933       1,672,933       1,633,596       (39,337)          

Fire 1,735,293       1,735,293       2,007,333       272,040          

Parks and recreation 15,600            15,600            42,709            27,109            

Facilities and resources 607,419          607,419          597,929          (9,490)            

Debt service: -                        

Principal 35,288            35,288            35,051            (237)                

Interest and other charges 1,269               1,269               2,554               1,285               

Capital outlay 97,731            97,731            628,711          530,980          

Total Expenditures 4,165,533       4,165,533       4,947,883       782,350          

Net Change in Fund Balances 480,346   $     480,346   $     81,788            (398,558)  $   

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 4,313,831       

Fund Balance - End of Year 4,395,619   $ 

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

171



OTHER REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
 

 

172



 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN 
 
The schedule of funding progress below shows the recent history of the actuarial value of assets, actuarial 
accrued liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 
to payroll for the District’s OPEB plan. 

 

Actuarial 

Valuation 

Date

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liability

(AAL)

Entry Age

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets

Unfunded 

Liability 

(Excess 

Assets) 

(UAAL)

Funded 

Status

Annual 

Covered 

Payroll

UAAL as a 

Percentage

of Payroll

7/1/2015 2,417,964   $ -   $         2,417,964   $ 0% 2,401,516   $ 101%

7/1/2012 3,654,534   $ -   $         3,654,534   $ 0% 2,202,284   $ 166%

1/1/2010 4,615,089   $ -   $         4,615,089   $ 0% 2,386,307   $ 193%

Funded Progress of the OPEB Plan

173



Miscellaneous Plan Measurement 

Date

June 30, 2014

Measurement 

Date

June 30, 2015

Measurement 

Date

June 30, 2016

Plan's Proportion of the PERF C Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset)
[Unknown] 0.047604%   0.046038%   

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset)
[Unknown] $  3,267,529    $  3,983,744    

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll $  1,371,718    $  1,227,092    $  1,400,582    

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered-

Employee Payroll

[Unknown] 266.28%   284.43%   

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net 

Position as a Percentage of the Plan's Total 

Pension Liability

[Unknown] 78.34%   73.96%   

Safety Plan Measurement 

Date

June 30, 2014

Measurement 

Date

June 30, 2015

Measurement 

Date

June 30, 2016

Plan's Proportion of the PERF C Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset)
[Unknown] 0.013392%   0.013208%   

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset)
[Unknown] $  919,244    $  1,142,903    

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll $  725,748    $  751,908    $  722,016    

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered-

Employee Payroll

[Unknown] 122.25%   158.29%   

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net 

Position as a Percentage of the Plan's Total 

Pension Liability

[Unknown] 79.30%   76.29%   

Total Measurement 

Date

June 30, 2014

Measurement 

Date

June 30, 2015

Measurement 

Date

June 30, 2016

Plan's Proportion of the PERF C Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset)
[Unknown] 0.060997%   0.059246%   

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset)
[Unknown] $  4,186,773    $  5,126,647    

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll $  2,097,466    $  1,979,000    $  2,122,598    

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered-

Employee Payroll

[Unknown] 211.56%   241.53%   

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net 

Position as a Percentage of the Plan's Total 

Pension Liability

[Unknown] 78.56%   74.52%   

* Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only 3 years are shown.

LAST TEN YEARS*

174



 

Miscellaneous Plan CalPERS

Fiscal Year

2014-15

CalPERS

Fiscal Year

2015-16

CalPERS

Fiscal Year

2016-17

Actuarially Determined Contributions
$  276,908    $  435,021    $  483,948    

Actual Contributions During the Measurement 

Period
$  (276,908)   $  (435,021)   $  (483,948)   

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $  -    $  -    $  -    

Covered Employee Payroll $  1,227,092    $  1,400,582    $  1,401,133    

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-

Employee Payroll
22.57%   31.06%   34.54%   

Safety Plan CalPERS

Fiscal Year

2014-15

CalPERS

Fiscal Year

2015-16

CalPERS

Fiscal Year

2016-17

Actuarially Determined Contributions
$  210,052    $  139,824    $  178,345    

Actual Contributions During the Measurement 

Period
$  (210,052)   $  (139,824)   $  (178,345)   

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $  -    $  -    $  -    

Covered Employee Payroll $  751,908    $  722,016    $  605,858    

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-

Employee Payroll
27.94%   19.37%   29.44%   

Total CalPERS

Fiscal Year

2014-15

CalPERS

Fiscal Year

2015-16

CalPERS

Fiscal Year

2016-17

Actuarially Determined Contributions
$  486,960    $  574,845    $  662,293    

Actual Contributions During the Measurement 

Period
$  (486,960)   $  (574,845)   $  (662,293)   

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $  -    $  -    $  -    

Covered Employee Payroll $  1,979,000    $  2,122,598    $  2,006,991    

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-

Employee Payroll
24.61%   27.08%   33.00%   

Notes to Schedule:

Contribution Valuation Date: June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014

* Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only 3 years are shown.

LAST TEN YEARS*

175



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.B.  
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Monique Madrid, District Clerk  
  Haley Dodson, Deputy District Clerk 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018  Subject:  DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION  

TO APPROVE AMENDED  
AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT 
SERVICES WITH TEKTEGRITY AND 
AUTHORIZE AN ADDITIONAL $1500 
FOR LABOR COSTS 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the attached amended 
Agreement for Consultant Services with TekTegrity and authorize an additional $1,500 for labor costs.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Increase in labor costs of $1,500. 
 
DISCUSSION: Staff would like to thank the Board for allowing this item to be brought back for additional 
consideration. At the March 22, 2018 Regular Board meeting, this item came before the Board for 
consideration and was not approved. A concern was raised regarding total expenses paid to TekTegrity 
in the amount of $83,000 when an expectation of $45,000 and $26,000 equaling $67,000 - $68,000 was 
authorized.  
 
At the June 22, 2017 Regular Board Meeting, the Board approved $26,376 for annual support estimated 
at 10 hours of support per month with an additional $5,747 for hardware and labor onboarding costs. At 
that time, an explanation of how we arrived at the estimation of time needed.   
 
At the October 26, 2017 Regular Board meeting, the Board authorized $45,494.50 for the purchase of 
hardware, software and labor costs for the upgrade and replacement of equipment for the CCSD network. 
The cost was an estimate based on the engineer’s review of the required work. At the time of the 
preparation of the proposal, the Board of Directors did not have CCSD issued email addresses. By the 
time we went live with the new Microsoft Office 365 software, the Board of Directors emails had been 
added to the system. This addition was not initially accounted for in the original proposal.    
 
Following the March 22, board meeting, staff went back and reviewed the records and worked with 
TekTegrity to provide an accurate and detailed analysis to determine the number of hours reduced 
compared to the number of hours charged as a result of staff negotiating with Tek Tegrity. Initially, the 
hours required to finish the project were estimated to be 52 hours at a cost of $125 per hour for a total 
of $6,500. Staff worked with TekTegrity and an agreement was reached to cap the additional labor cost 
at 12 hours with a rate of $125 per hour for a total of $1,500. This resulted in a cost savings to the 
CCSD of $5,000.  
 
Staff has prepared a chart below for your reference. CCSD staff is very appreciative of TekTegrity’s 
willingness to work with us to finish the project, and only exceeding the approved budget of $45,494.50 
by 3.3% or $1500.  Staff would like to reassure the entire Board that we do work closely with vendors in 
order to stay within the authorized contract amounts. Often times vendors provide work for which they 
do not charge, as they did in this case. 
 
Please find a more detailed analysis of the expenses paid to TekTegrity for the fiscal year 2017/2018 
below, including the server project, annual support, and various hardware purchases and 
installation/labor charges.   

176



 
 

 
 

 
 

11/14/2017 01-6170-09 Adm/Hardware & Software Deposit $10,971.66

11/30/2018 01-6170-09 Adm/New Servers and Microsoft 365 $23,119.50

1/31/2018 01-6170-09 Adm/Server/Network $6,629.59

2/16/2018 01-6170-09 Adm/One Hour of Labor $130.00

2/28/2018 01-6170-09 Adm/5 BOD Microsoft Office 365 Subscriptions $300.00

2/28/2018 01-6170-09 Adm/20.5 Billable Hours $2,600.00

4/25/2018 01-6170-09 Adm/Engineer Regular Work $1,531.25

$45,282.00

Server Project

Date Account Number Notes Amount

7/31/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Wattbox 3 Outlet Security Firewall $4,084.53

8/31/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Tek Services Essentials Billable $1,156.25

8/31/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Blackbox Kit 4tb Back Up Equipment $1,067.96

11/13/2017 01-6045-09 Adm/Deposit for Admin Computers $2,819.70

11/30/2017 01-6045-09 Adm/Final Payment for Admin Computers $434.19

12/31/2017 01-6045-09 Adm/Install Configure 3 Admin Workstations $880.00

1/18/2018 01-6045-09 Adm/DVI Cable 27" Monitor (AT3) $215.59

1/31/2018 01-6045-09 Adm/Hard Drive Destruction $40.00

1/31/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Three workstations $1,812.50

2/16/2018 01-6045-09 Adm/DVI Cable, LCD Monitor $215.59

2/28/2018 01-6045-09 Adm/VGA Cable $21.55

2/28/2018 01-6045-09 Adm/VGA Cable $26.93

3/31/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/HP Printer C Cox $653.81

3/31/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Rudy's New HP Probook $1,187.47

5/14/2018 01-6045-09 Rudy's New Laptop Technician Time $500.00

5/14/2018 01-6045-09 Rudy's New Computer Monitor $155.05

2/16/2018 01-6044-09 Credit received in June, 2018 -$192.50

2/16/2018 01-6044-09 Credit received in June, 2018 -$375.00

$14,703.62

Admin Laptops/Computers/Accessories

10/26/2017 11-6045-11 WD/Bob's New Computer $1,469.79

11/22/2017 11-6045-11 WD/WW Microsoft Project 2016 $589.99

3/31/2018 11-6044-11 WD/HP Laserjet Print $521.53

$2,581.31

10/26/2017 12-6045-12 WW/Bob's New Computer $1,469.78

11/22/2017 12-6045-12 WW/Bob Gresens Laptop $130.00

$1,599.78

Water

Wastewater

177



 
 
To date, the total cost of the Agreement for the purchase of hardware, software and labor costs for the 
upgrade and replacement of equipment for the CCSD network is $45,282.00, with a remaining balance 
of $212.50. The cost to finish the project required an additional 12 hours of labor at a cost of $125.00 per 
hour, creating a need for an additional $1,500. 
 
232 hours were spent to complete the entire server project.  
30 hours were written off and not billed. 
10 hours were performed by Jeff Franklin, who is salaried, and were not billed. 
180 hours were originally approved. 
12 additional hours were requested at the March and April Board meetings. 
 

 

7/31/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

8/22/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

9/15/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

10/15/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

11/15/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

12/15/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

1/15/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

2/15/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

3/2/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

3/15/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

4/15/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

5/22/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Monthly billing $2,198.00

$26,376.00

9/30/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Overage Hours for September 2017 $1,456.25

11/30/2017 01-6044-09 Adm/Overage Hours for October & November 2017 $2,437.50

1/31/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Overage Hours for January 2018 $1,125.00

2/28/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Feb 2018 Billable Time $3,031.25

4/25/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Overage Hours for March 2018 $2,500.00

5/14/2018 01-6044-09 Adm/Overage Hours for April 2018 $4,250.00

$14,800.00

Admin Monthly Billing

Admin Additional Monthly Hours Billed

178



Based on the above information, staff recommends the Board of Directors approve the amended 

Agreement for Consultant Services with TekTegrity and authorize an additional $1,500 for labor costs.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Amendment to Agreement for Consultant Services  
   Change Order Proposal #JF014857 Version 1 
   Before and After Pictures 
 

 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
   
UNANIMOUS ___RICE___BAHRINGER ___FARMER____WHARTON____PIERSON 

179



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 

This Amendment to Agreement for Consultant Services ("Amendment") by and between 
the CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (“CCSD”) and TEKTEGRITY 
(“Consultant”) is made and entered into this 28th day of June, 2018.  

WHEREAS, the parties entered into an Agreement for Consultant Services (“Agreement”) 
on October 26, 2017, under which Consultant provided IT services to the CCSD; and  

WHEREAS, the Agreement expired on February 28, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, Consultant and CCSD now mutually agree and desire to revive and amend 

certain portions of the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

1. The Agreement is hereby revived and shall be in effect until July 5, 2018, unless 

sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions thereof. 

 

2. Consultant shall provide the services described in the proposal dated June 5, 

2018, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, and 

shall be paid the amount set forth therein.  

 

3. Except as modified herein, all terms and conditions of the Agreement, as 

amended, shall be in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CCSD and CONSULTANT have executed this Amendment 

the day and year first above written.  

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES  TEKTEGRITY 

DISTRICT 
 
____________________________  _____________________________ 
Jerry Gruber, General Manager   Jeff Bower 
 
Attest:   

____________________________ 
Monique Madrid, District Clerk 
 

180



Change Order for

Proposal #JF014857  |  Version 1

Tuesday, June 5, 2018

Cambria Community Services District

181



TotalEachQtyAdjustments to Services

$1,500.00$125.0012Project Labor - Per Hour

Additional hours to complete mailbox migrations for CCSD board 
members not previously accounted for in original quote.

$1,500.00Adjustments to Services Subtotal

Prepared ByPrepared For

Cambria Community Services District
Haley Dodson
1316 Tamson Drive
Cambria, CA  93428
hdodson@cambriacsd.org

TekTegrity
Jeff Franklin
150 South Street
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401
jfranklin@ciosolutions.com

Change Order

Proposal # JF014857  |  Version 1

Cost Summary

$1,500.00Total

Tuesday, June 5, 2018 Page 2 of 3

182



Terms & Conditions

06/05/2018 12:49 AMDate/Time

Signature

Jeff Franklin,  IT ConsultantCompany

TekTegrity

Date/Time

Signature

Title

Haley DodsonName

Cambria, CA 93428

1316 Tamson DriveAddress

Cambria Community Services DistrictCompany

FOR CLIENT

Quotes expire within 30 days.  All software sales are final - our vendors do not accept software returns. Also, our
vendors may change prices on products in high demand between the time a quote is made and the product is ordered.
Vendor’s shipping fees may also vary from quoted amount. TekTegrity reserves the right to make minor pricing
adjustments in the final invoice if our vendors change prices.  A downpayment may be required for all hardware and
software over $500.  Labor will be billed separately in accordance of the terms of your Service Agreement..

Tuesday, June 5, 2018 Page 3 of 3

183



Cambria Community Services District

New Server Project 

Before and After Pictures

184



Administration Office 

This is the server room before the old server equipment and wiring was removed. 

185



This is after the old server equipment and wiring was removed. 

186



Facilities & Resources Department

This is before the old wiring was removed. 

This is after the old wiring was removed. 

187



Fire Department

This is the server room before the old wiring 
and server was removed. 

This is after the old wiring was removed and the 
new server was installed. 

188



Wastewater Department

This is before the old equipment and wiring was removed. This is after the old equipment and wiring was 
removed. 

189



Veterans Memorial Building

This is the new wireless modem that was installed at the Vets Hal. 

190



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.C. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018  Subject:      DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 
               REGARDING REVIEW OF CCSD  
               POLICIES AND POSSIBLE CREATION 
               OF AD HOC COMMITTEE 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors discuss and consider creating a process to 
review current CCSD policies, and the possible appointment of an Ad Hoc Committee to 
review such policies and make recommendations. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Other than staff time, there is no fiscal impact associated with this agenda item. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
President Rice has requested that this item be placed on the agenda for this meeting to 
discuss and consider providing for a comprehensive review of all CCSD policies, and 
potentially creating a District Policy Manual. President Rice has also indicated that she would 
like the Board of Directors to consider appointing an Ad Hoc Committee to review the CCSD’s 
policies and make recommendations to the Board. 
 
Staff feels compelled to bring to the Board’s attention the fact that it has significant concerns 
regarding the impact that creating another committee and another project would have on staff 
resources. As the Board knows, it has only recently created the new Finance and 
Infrastructure Committees. In addition, the Finance Committee has indicated that it is going to 
review all of the District’s Finance-related policies. While staff can appreciate the interest in 
implementing a broader review of all District policies, doing so at a time when they are already 
stretched thin and working on many other ongoing projects will likely affect their ability to carry 
out the already established priorities of the Board. Accordingly, it may be desirable to defer this 
item for the time being. Staff can elaborate on these concerns at the Board meeting. 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ FARMER___BAHRINGER ___ WHARTON ___PIERSON____ 
 

191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



June 18, 2018 
 
 
Jerry Gruber, District Manager                                         Sent via Electronic Mail 
Cambria Community Services District                                                         
P.O. Box 65 
Cambria, CA  93428 
Email: jgruber@cambriacsd.org  
 
Dear Mr. Gruber: 
 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT EMERGENCY WATER SUPPLY PROJECT, 
CAMBRIA, SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY – STATUS OF UPDATE OF ORDER NO. R3-2014-
0050  
 
This letter is intended to clarify the permit status of the Emergency Water Supply facility 
currently subject to Waste Discharge and Water Recycling Requirements Order No. R3-2014-
0050. 
 
The following summarizes information conveyed to you by Central Coast Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (Central Coast Water Board) staff at a meeting in your offices on May 22, 
2018: 
 

1. The Emergency Water Supply Order No R3-2014-0050 update has been delayed until 
sometime in 2019. 

2. Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) may continue to operate the Emergency 
Water Supply system under the existing Order provided:  

a. The injection rate of treated water into the aquifer does not exceed 400 gallons 
per minute;  

b. CCSD will haul away all newly generated reverse osmosis concentrate and 
Emergency Water Supply associated wastewaters to an appropriately regulated 
facility; and 

c. The Emergency Water Supply facility will operate as detailed in the recently 
updated Operations Maintenance and Monitoring Plan, once approved by the 
Division of Drinking Water and the Central Coast Water Board. 

3. Central Coast Water Board staff intends to update Monitoring and Reporting Program 
R3-2014-0050 (accomplished via the Executive Officers signature) to grant CCSD relief 
from groundwater monitoring requirements during periods of Emergency Water Supply 
facility shutdown, excepting 1-month prior to facility restart, and 3-months after facility 
shut down. 

 

201

mailto:jgruber@cambriacsd.org


Please contact Jon Rokke at (805) 549-3892  jon.rokke@waterboards.ca.gov or Jennifer Epp at 
jennifer.epp@waterboards.ca.gov with any questions you may have concerning this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
for John M. Robertson 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
Cc: Bob Gresens – CCSD Engineer 
 bgresens@cambriacsd.org 
 
 John Allchin – EWS Chief Plant Operator 
 jallchin@cambriacsd.org 
 
 Melissa Bland, CCSD Permit Compliance Specialist 
 Mbland@cambriacsd.org 
 
 Jon Rokke – CCRWQCB 
 Jon.rokke@waterboards.ca.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
ECM# 809684 
 
R:\RB3\Shared\WDR\WDR Facilities\San Luis Obispo Co\Cambria WWTP\Emergency Water Supply Project\WDR 
2014-0050\Permit Update 6-28-18\CCSD EWS Item Delay Ltr.doc 

 

202

mailto:jon.rokke@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:jennifer.epp@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:bgresens@cambriacsd.org
mailto:jallchin@cambriacsd.org
mailto:Mbland@cambriacsd.org
mailto:Jon.rokke@waterboards.ca.gov


203



FIREBREAKS 2018 

 

204



205



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 

TOTAL
YEAR

S.S. 14.87 15.89 25.03 32.22 38.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.72

S.R. 29.65 23.27 12.99 6.85 5.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 77.77

SS & SR TOTAL 44.51 39.15 38.02 39.06 43.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 204.49

AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 31.92 18.84 40.96 45.42 46.33 34.69 24.65 18.90 25.89 28.39 19.19 23.18 358.36

S.R. 6.88 14.33 5.95 9.76 17.86 28.23 32.52 32.01 16.80 12.13 19.96 20.92 217.36

SS & SR TOTAL 38.80 33.18 46.91 55.18 64.19 62.92 57.17 50.90 42.69 40.53 39.15 44.11 575.72

AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 16.43 9.51 19.84 21.88 24.30 30.90 30.40 29.68 29.02 8.07 5.82 21.55 247.39

S.R. 17.87 27.34 16.71 15.60 15.74 13.87 20.45 18.12 16.65 34.27 31.97 18.30 246.89

SS & SR TOTAL 34.30 36.86 36.55 37.47 40.04 44.76 50.85 47.80 45.67 42.34 37.79 39.85 494.28

AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.33 7.04 5.70 23.07

S.S. 19.95 16.65 17.16 17.79 16.18 14.14 15.14 17.39 20.36 26.17 23.74 21.23 225.89

S.R. 14.77 14.90 20.53 20.68 20.99 26.51 29.51 27.78 21.94 16.05 13.57 13.90 241.13

SS & SR TOTAL 34.72 31.55 37.69 38.47 37.17 40.65 44.65 45.17 42.30 42.22 37.31 35.13 467.02

AWTP 5.55 14.34 12.49 7.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.68 8.07 6.29 10.89 68.92

S.S. 22.93 16.97 24.90 25.03 19.39 14.40 11.94 0.00 0.76 24.32 13.74 23.81 198.17

S.R. 34.69 19.85 10.00 10.44 18.88 24.19 30.89 43.09 36.26 12.06 18.63 9.62 268.59

SS & SR TOTAL 57.62 36.82 34.90 35.47 38.27 38.59 42.82 43.09 37.01 36.37 32.36 33.44 466.76

S.S. 50.55 47.40 54.72 55.27 63.18 46.01 60.82 72.32 57.73 29.84 26.72 28.61 593.16

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.27 5.28 27.57 18.12 3.50 7.62 22.56 25.38 25.61 139.91

SS & SR TOTAL 50.55 47.40 54.72 59.54 68.45 73.58 78.94 75.82 65.35 52.40 52.11 54.22 733.07

S.S. 50.12 48.09 52.60 50.52 60.06 56.53 48.17 41.12 36.72 42.22 48.70 50.88 585.73

S.R. 3.54 0.79 0.00 0.66 1.44 11.14 27.95 33.22 29.98 21.43 8.86 0.00 139.01

SS & SR TOTAL 53.66 48.88 52.60 51.18 61.50 67.67 76.12 74.34 66.70 63.65 57.56 50.88 724.74

S.S. 48.05 43.36 45.17 52.11 53.94 49.27 60.52 55.52 45.40 45.67 46.28 51.87 597.16

S.R. 0.00 0.70 0.00 0.76 6.65 11.03 12.97 14.82 19.45 14.15 5.19 0.00 85.72

SS & SR TOTAL 48.05 44.06 45.17 52.87 60.59 60.30 73.49 70.34 64.85 59.82 51.47 51.87 682.88

S.S. 45.44 40.48 47.48 48.39 56.26 55.29 50.73 44.58 35.05 37.61 36.14 36.45 533.90

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.77 0.62 0.68 8.74 21.96 27.30 32.52 21.71 14.48 9.73 138.51

SS & SR TOTAL 45.44 40.48 48.25 49.01 56.94 64.03 72.69 71.88 67.57 59.32 50.62 46.18 672.41

S.S. 28.17 37.57 50.95 58.52 48.56 37.47 48.80 40.69 31.99 44.62 53.05 46.55 526.94

S.R. 24.83 3.81 0.00 0.00 13.53 26.06 25.21 34.10 32.64 11.02 0.00 1.34 172.54

SS & SR TOTAL 53.00 41.38 50.95 58.52 62.09 63.53 74.01 74.79 64.63 55.64 53.05 47.89 699.48

S.S. 43.35 45.35 51.55 52.59 40.45 33.03 40.15 47.57 47.24 41.53 21.47 25.41 489.69

S.R. 2.33 0.67 0.71 2.20 24.69 33.55 32.94 24.87 18.26 21.03 32.21 24.46 217.92

SS & SR TOTAL 45.68 46.02 52.26 54.79 65.14 66.58 73.09 72.44 65.50 62.56 53.68 49.87 707.61

S.S. 57.70 47.45 56.47 60.50 56.11 51.21 55.95 63.48 58.72 37.58 34.83 38.61 618.61

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.60 1.81 14.47 22.24 23.47 12.37 5.29 18.70 21.20 9.42 129.57

SS & SR TOTAL 57.70 47.45 57.07 62.31 70.58 73.45 79.42 75.85 64.01 56.28 56.03 48.03 748.18

Difference by Time Period

(Current Period - Previous 

Period)

5.72 11.69

2018

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

2.80 -13.31 -33.76

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
7

DIFFERENCE
5.72 5.98 -8.89 -16.11 -20.45

(Current YR - Previous YR)

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
0

2
0

0
9

2
0

0
9

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
7

206



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 

TOTAL
YEAR

2018

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

S.S. 50.81 49.10 48.82 49.65 60.58 65.65 56.12 59.67 52.49 42.86 34.46 42.75 612.96

S.R. 0.00 0.78 0.00 0.62 0.74 2.56 23.58 20.72 20.17 23.88 26.46 13.63 133.14

SS & SR TOTAL 50.81 49.88 48.82 50.27 61.32 68.21 79.70 80.39 72.66 66.74 60.92 56.38 746.10

S.S. 50.05 46.16 51.09 55.01 65.70 68.81 80.52 61.60 48.71 47.08 40.83 36.70 652.26

S.R. 0.00 0.62 0.93 0.76 0.76 0.73 1.64 17.32 20.25 21.69 16.92 7.36 88.98

SS & SR TOTAL 50.05 46.78 52.02 55.77 66.46 69.54 82.16 78.92 68.96 68.77 57.75 44.06 741.24

S.S. 55.83 51.40 58.56 64.33 67.98 52.62 47.04 39.68 41.06 34.80 49.30 49.92 612.52

S.R. 0.00 0.61 1.17 4.84 8.68 22.08 30.80 36.30 27.32 24.95 1.73 1.63 160.11

SS & SR TOTAL 55.83 52.01 59.73 69.17 76.66 74.70 77.84 75.98 68.38 59.75 51.03 51.55 772.63

S.S. 52.73 49.97 57.35 58.32 62.82 68.22 65.05 63.34 58.91 67.08 56.20 48.84 708.83

S.R. 0.70 1.11 0.48 0.94 1.84 5.63 19.77 22.04 16.00 6.58 3.12 5.84 84.05

SS & SR TOTAL 53.43 51.08 57.83 59.26 64.66 73.85 84.82 85.38 74.91 73.66 59.32 54.68 792.88

S.S. 54.43 52.23 60.70 65.43 60.75 55.13 66.79 73.35 66.59 62.03 56.36 53.98 727.77

S.R. 1.28 1.27 1.10 1.11 14.82 22.79 19.54 9.67 3.52 4.02 2.04 0.55 81.71

SS & SR TOTAL 55.71 53.50 61.80 66.54 75.57 77.92 86.33 83.02 70.11 66.05 58.40 54.53 809.48

S.S. 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 78.50 53.45 56.21 48.16 52.29 745.25

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.78 21.08 16.87 8.06 0.89 52.68

SS & SR TOTAL 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 84.28 74.53 73.08 56.22 53.18 797.93

S.S. 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.S. 56.40 45.26 52.16 57.40 70.43 71.35 85.41 82.68 69.45 68.04 57.78 57.69 774.05

S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.07 0.01 0.02 0.32 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.53

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 45.27 52.17 57.44 70.45 71.42 85.42 82.70 69.77 68.06 57.78 57.69 774.58

S.S. 44.39 46.36 47.00 50.53 56.43 63.43 77.75 80.30 68.35 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.31

S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.09 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.16

SS & SR TOTAL 44.40 46.37 47.01 50.54 56.43 63.44 77.76 80.39 68.36 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.47

S.S. 50.61 49.20 65.66 68.65 76.18 79.14 82.31 57.02 37.32 27.50 38.96 45.96 678.51

S.R. 0.02 0.08 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.38 25.92 31.54 36.85 12.41 0.01 107.29

SS & SR TOTAL 50.63 49.28 65.68 68.67 76.20 79.16 82.69 82.94 68.86 64.35 51.37 45.97 785.80

S.S. 46.66 43.40 47.39 56.95 66.18 70.83 75.70 77.27 68.23 65.58 50.37 49.43 717.99

S.R. 0.01 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.26

SS & SR TOTAL 46.67 43.43 47.42 56.98 66.21 70.84 75.73 77.29 68.24 65.60 50.39 49.45 718.25

S.S. 41.30 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 675.94

S.R. 1.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.90

SS & SR TOTAL 43.20 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 677.84

S.S. 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.60 63.40 69.30 47.80 31.70 30.80 28.20 26.00 538.00

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 25.00 30.20 27.70 21.20 19.90 124.10

SS & SR TOTAL 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.70 63.40 69.30 72.80 61.90 58.50 49.40 45.90 662.10

S.S. 50.10 45.70 52.60 56.30 68.30 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 690.50

S.R. 0.50 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90

SS & SR TOTAL 50.60 46.00 52.60 56.30 68.40 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 691.40

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

1
9

9
9

1
9

9
9

1
9

9
8

1
9

9
8

1
9

9
7

1
9

9
7

1
9

9
6

1
9

9
6

1
9

9
5

1
9

9
5

1
9

9
4

1
9

9
4

1
9

9
3

1
9

9
3

207



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 

TOTAL
YEAR

2018

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

S.S. 45.30 42.20 45.90 55.20 64.00 58.10 44.90 41.80 35.00 32.80 34.00 43.10 542.30

S.R. 0.80 0.30 0.10 0.40 0.50 6.10 22.70 28.10 26.30 25.10 19.50 5.50 135.40

SS & SR TOTAL 46.10 42.50 46.00 55.60 64.50 64.20 67.60 69.90 61.30 57.90 53.50 48.60 677.70

S.S. 26.90 23.10 32.70 39.60 48.60 44.10 40.10 34.80 30.50 28.00 26.40 30.10 404.90

S.R. 15.30 13.10 0.50 0.10 0.10 5.50 15.00 21.60 20.20 21.00 19.70 18.70 150.80

SS & SR TOTAL 42.20 36.20 33.20 39.70 48.70 49.60 55.10 56.40 50.70 49.00 46.10 48.80 555.70

S.S. 45.70 47.00 55.28 44.75 31.46 32.34 40.00 38.00 31.91 31.40 29.40 29.90 457.14

S.R. 8.70 0.80 0.50 18.03 32.30 26.79 22.30 22.20 20.64 20.20 19.30 14.90 206.66

SS & SR TOTAL 54.40 47.80 55.78 62.78 63.76 59.13 62.30 60.20 52.55 51.60 48.70 44.80 663.80

S.S. 51.00 47.90 53.90 61.90 57.20 62.20 69.20 60.90 36.30 38.70 42.60 40.60 622.40

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 13.80 13.50 17.90 28.00 42.00 22.60 17.60 18.20 174.60

SS & SR TOTAL 51.00 47.90 53.90 62.90 71.00 75.70 87.10 88.90 78.30 61.30 60.20 58.80 797.00

S.S. 51.20 57.90 63.20 47.30 57.40 44.20 50.00 51.70 41.90 37.40 27.40 36.00 565.60

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.30 15.70 30.70 31.20 34.90 36.00 34.90 35.20 19.00 253.90

SS & SR TOTAL 51.20 57.90 63.20 63.60 73.10 74.90 81.20 86.60 77.90 72.30 62.60 55.00 819.50

1
9

8
9

1
9

8
9

1
9

8
8

1
9

8
8

1
9

9
2

1
9

9
2

1
9

9
1

1
9

9
1

1
9

9
0

1
9

9
0

208



DAY OF 
MONTH

SS #1 SS #2 SS #3 SR4 SR1 SR3
ALL WELLS 
TOTAL 

(galx1000)

Daily 
Pumpage 
(Acre‐Feet)

Month‐to‐Date 
(Acre‐Feet)

AWTP Santa Rosa
SR3 

(galx1,000)
SR4 (gal)

1 0.00 220.00 244.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 464.00 1.42 1 0.00 1602130.00
2 0.00 215.00 214.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 430.00 1.32 3 0.00 1602130.00
3 0.00 204.00 236.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 441.00 1.35 4 0.00 1602130.00
4 0.00 203.00 219.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 422.00 1.30 5 0.00 1602130.00
5 0.00 220.00 232.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 452.00 1.39 7 0.00 1602130.00
6 0.00 238.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 488.00 1.50 8 0.00 1602130.00
7 0.00 223.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 458.00 1.41 10 0.00 1602130.00
8 0.00 236.00 248.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 484.00 1.49 11 0.00 1602130.00
9 0.00 220.00 232.00 0.00 3.00 0.00 455.00 1.40 13 0.00 1602130.00
10 0.00 218.00 230.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 448.00 1.37 14 0.00 1602130.00
11 0.00 275.00 131.00 0.00 0.00 11.00 417.00 1.28 15 3.00 1602130.00
12 0.00 188.00 173.00 0.00 0.00 63.00 424.00 1.30 17 5.00 1602130.00
13 0.00 261.00 275.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 536.00 1.64 18 0.00 1602130.00
14 0.00 206.00 216.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 422.00 1.30 19 0.00 1602130.00
15 0.00 136.00 144.00 0.00 2.00 160.00 442.00 1.36 21 9.00 1602130.00
16 0.00 144.00 154.00 0.00 2.00 92.00 392.00 1.20 22 9.00 1602130.00
17 0.00 231.00 245.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 476.00 1.46 23 0.00 1602130.00
18 0.00 185.00 195.00 0.00 3.00 63.00 446.00 1.37 25 3.00 1602130.00
19 0.00 153.00 161.00 0.00 1.00 182.00 497.00 1.53 26 6.00 1602130.00
20 0.00 252.00 265.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 517.00 1.59 28 0.00 1602130.00
21 0.00 228.00 241.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 469.00 1.44 29 0.00 1602130.00
22 0.00 18.00 189.00 0.00 0.00 219.00 426.00 1.31 31 8.00 1602130.00
23 0.00 123.00 143.00 0.00 0.00 187.00 453.00 1.39 32 6.00 1602130.00
24 0.00 139.00 148.00 0.00 0.00 204.00 491.00 1.51 34 6.00 1602130.00
25 0.00 181.00 96.00 0.00 1.00 136.00 414.00 1.27 35 6.00 1602130.00
26 0.00 151.00 157.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 308.00 0.95 36 0.00 1602130.00
27 0.00 243.00 305.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 548.00 1.68 38 0.00 1602130.00
28 0.00 270.00 299.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 569.00 1.75 39 0.00 1602130.00
29 0.00 279.00 298.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 579.00 1.78 41 0.00 1602130.00
30 0.00 108.00 109.00 0.00 1.00 154.00 372.00 1.14 42 5.00 1602130.00
31 0.00 178.00 187.00 0.00 0.00 148.00 513.00 1.57 44 6.00 1602130.00

TOTALS 0.00 6146.00 6471.00 1.00 16.00 1619.00 14253.00 43.74 (galx1000) 0.00 0.00 (galx1000) 72.00 0.00
Daily AVG 0.00 198.26 208.74 0.03 0.52 52.23 459.77 1.41 (ACRE‐FEET) 0.00 0.00 (ACRE‐FEET) 0.22 0.00

100% 100% 100%
Corrected 0.00 6146.00 6471.00 1.00 16.00 1619.00 14253.00 43.74 (ACRE‐FEET)

DATE METER
5/1/2018 26.00

5/31/2018 43.00

38.72 ‐0.04 38.68 17.00
5.02 5.02 0.04
43.74 43.70
0.00

Total Recirc (AF)

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT MAY PRODUCTION
Mitigation Both Creeks 

(galx1000)
WELLS (galx1000)

Meter Correction Factors from Calibration done

ANALYZER METER

WELLFIELD 
CORRECTION

NET 
PRODUCTION 

(AF)

BACKWASH TOTAL

San Simeon Total 0.00 Total Recirc (ccf)
GROSS PRODUCTION (AF)

SS & SR TOTAL 0.00

CORRECTIONS Mitigation

AWTP Total

Santa Rosa Total 0.00

209



210



211



212



213



214



ACTIVITIES REPORT  

PROJECT SUMMARY 

REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 

June 21, 2018 Cambria Community Services District Dean Florez, Lobbyist Consultant 

STATUS SUMMARY 

Board Members: 

 

Please find below BPR’s activity report: 

 

1. Hours Worked and Expended 
2. Explicit Description on meeting/gathering/workshop attended. 
3. Explicit dates of meetings and purpose. 
4. Summary Narrative of the month activities 

 

SPECIFIC WORK FLOW 

TASK HOURS DATE PURPOSE NOTES 

Regulatory Work 6 May 15 Evaluation of Division of Water Rights 
Process –State Water Board 

Division of Water Rights 
CONSIDERATION OF A 
PROPOSED ORDER 
ISSUING A CEASE AND 
DESIST ORDER AND 
IMPOSING 
ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL 
LIABILITY,  

Regulatory Work 7 May 16 Bill Tracking and Updates—Items including 
Water Tax budget bill language.  

Legislative analysis of 
water tax bill moving 
through budget conference 
committees. 

Legislative Meetings 7 May 17th Bill Tracking and Updates. Assembly & Senate Staff 

Legislative Meetings 8 May 22 Meeting with I-Bank officials & Board 
Members. 

Items to be forwarded to I-
Bank representatives. 

Administrative Work 1 May 29th Call with GM   Board I-Bank Priorities  

215



Administrative/Legislative 
Work 

7 May 30th Legislative Bill Discussion/Selection Legislative Priorities & 
Selection-conference 
committee items. 

Regulatory Work 9 June 1st State Water Resources Control Board (State 
Water Board) will hold a public stakeholder 
workgroup meeting 

Public Stakeholder 
Workgroup Meeting to 
Support the Development 
of Water Loss Performance 
Standards 

Legislative Meetings 8 June 4th Senate Water Committee  Tracked Bills & Budget 
Conference Committee 
Items 

Regulatory Work 8 June 5th State Water Resources Control Board Consideration of the 
Adoption of the Proposed 
Final Amendments to the 
Water Quality Control Plan 
for Enclosed Bays, and 
Estuaries: Sediment 
Quality Provisions, and the 
Proposed Final Staff 
Report including the 
Substitute Environmental 
Documentation 

Regulatory Work 5 June 8th Work on package requirements for I-Bank 
Submittal  

Administrative/Regulatory 
work.  

Administrative Work 1 June 11 Weekly Update with GM Gruber Ongoing Priorities  

Regulatory Work 7 June 19 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL 
BOARD MEETING 

Consideration of a 
proposed Resolution to 
adopt the State Fiscal Year 
2018-19 Drinking Water 
State Revolving Fund 
Intended Use Plan and 
Revised Final Guidelines 
for the State Drinking 
Water Funding Program, 
including Proposition 1 
Drinking Water 

Regulatory Work 2 June 19 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL 
BOARD  

Amendment to the Policy 
for Water Quality Control 
for Recycled Water 

Administrative Work 2 June 20 Municipal Finance Options  Discussion on taxable 
issues with Stifel, Nicolaus 
& Company, Incorporated 

Administrative Work 1 June 20 Weekly Update with GM Gruber Ongoing Priorities  

Legislative Work 6 June 21 Budget Passage 
& Trailer Bills 

Analysis of Budget 
Items Passed in 
Trailer Bills 

     

     

216



     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

SUMMARY HOURS UTLIZED  

CATAGORY HOURS  

Administrative 12  

Regulatory Work 44  

Legislative 29  

Travel 17  

TOTAL MONTHLY HOURS EXPENDED 102  

 

 

 

 

217



Public Records Requests and Responses 
 

There were 5 Public Record Requests received since May 24, 2018 by the following citizens. The listing 
below is representative of the request and does not necessarily reflect the extensive nature of each 
request.  

5/22/2018: Laurel Stewart 1. Are there any retirement or conservation easements or other 
development restrictions on Greenspace’s 013-264-023 and/or 013-264-022? Aside from the fact that 
there’s currently no water service to either. 

On May 31, 2018, the CCSD responded to Laurel Stewart’s 5/22/2018 Public Records Request with the 
following:  

There are no documents showing any restrictions on the two subject APNs as far as the CCSD is 
concerned. The County governs land use, so it would be best to inquire there for further information. 
 
5/23/2018: Elizabeth Bettenhausen 1. I note that green sheets have appeared on social media for 
proposed rate increases. Are all revisions to the Agenda on green sheets? 
I don't want to read a bunch of stuff over again, if not actually changed. Putting a note on the 
Agenda/Minutes page of the web site about what's been revised would be helpful. But please let me 
know via e-mail too. 

On May 23, 2018, the CCSD responded to Elizabeth Bettenhausen’s 5/23/2018 Public Records Request 
with the following:  

Attached is the amended Board of Director’s Regular Meeting agenda packet for Thursday, May 24, 
2018, which includes the following revisions: 

1. 6.A. Revised Draft Notice of Proposed Increases  
2. 6.B. Revised Staff Report Attachment 
3. 6.B. Revised Cindy Cleveland Proposal 

Please note that all revisions to the agenda are on green sheets and the revisions are listed on page one 
of the amended agenda. 

5/29/2018: Glenn Baldwin 1. Requesting the library feasibility study. 

On May 29, 2018, the CCSD responded to Glenn Baldwin’s 5/29/2018 Public Records Request with the 
following:  

Enclosed is the library feasibility study. 

5/29/2018: Michael Calderwood 1. I would like any reports pertaining to the recent (May 29) fire. I am 
looking specifically for all information around the event as it relates to Emergency Services response. 
This may include responding agencies, personnel, equipment, mutual aid response, and as much time-
denoted information as available. The purpose of requesting this information is to assist me in building a 
complete picture of how mutual aid/support response actually works, and how long it takes for 

218



responding personnel and equipment to be dispatched, travel to incident, provide support and aid as 
needed. Timely accurate information around a real, vs. theoritical incident would serve the interests of 
the community prior to the June 5th election. 

On May 31, 2018, the CCSD responded to Michael Calderwood’s 5/30/2018 Public Records Request with 
the following:  

Enclosed is the detailed report for 1100 Pinewood Drive. For all responding apparatus, the Fire Chief has 
identified the unit description and location origin next to each relevant line item. Additionally, he has 
highlighted "dispatch" times as blue, "en route times" as red, and "on scene" times as yellow, for easier 
comparison.  If you have any further clarification, please contact the Fire Chief at (805) 927-6240. 
 
6/18/2018: Anonymous 1. I'd like to request a copy of the Finance Committee meeting recording on 
Thursday, June 14, 2018. 

On June 18, 2018, the CCSD responded to Anonymous’ s 6/18/2018 Public Records Request with the 
following:  

Enclosed is the June 14, 2018 Finance Committee meeting recording. Please note that Karen Dean 
stated she shut the recording off when they indicated they were breaking for lunch, yet the committee 
continued discussing Wastewater Infrastructure for a few minutes, and there may be a couple of pauses 
towards the last hour or so when she switched to low battery mode, but she thinks she caught it all 
except a few comments. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
  

 
 

 
 

219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272


	Meeting Agenda



